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hLjg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8
;ftf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DaGwL ;"rgf

o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] ldlt @)*@÷)(÷)& ut]] ;f]daf/ a;]sf] !#$ cf}+ a}7ssf] lg0f{o 
cg';f/ o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;ftf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef lgDg lnlvt ldlt, ;do / :yfgdf lgDg ljifox? 
pk/ 5nkmn tyf lg0f{o ug{ a:g] ePsf] x'Fbf sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf ^& adf]lhd ;Dk'0f{ z]o/wgL 
dxfg'efjx?sf] hfgsf/L tyf pkl:yltsf nflu cg'/f]w ub}{ of] ;"rgf k|sflzt ul/Psf] 5 . 
 
;fwf/0f ;ef x'g] ldlt, ;do / :yfg M
ldlt M @)*@÷)(÷@( ut] d+unaf/ -tbg';f/ !# hgj/L, @)@^_
;do M laxfg !)M#) ah] .	
:yfg M ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no, s6x/L @, df]/Ë .
   
5nkmnsf ljifox?M
-s_ 	;fdfGo k|:tfj
-!_ 	;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 cWoIfHo"n] k]z ug{'x'g] cfly{s aif{ @)*!÷)*@ sf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg pk/ 

5nkmn u/L kfl/t ug{] .  
-@_ 	n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg ;lxt cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ sf] jf;nft, gfkmf gf]S;fg lx;fa / gub k|jfx 

ljj/0f tyf ;f];Fu ;DalGwt cg';"rLx? pk/ 5nkmn u/L kfl/t ug{] .
-#_ a+}s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf ;DaGwL P]g, @)&# sf] bkmf ^# tyf sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !!! cg';f/ 

cfly{s jif{ @)*@÷)*# sf] nflu n]vfk/LIfs lgo'Qm ug{] / lghsf] kfl/>lds lgwf{/0f ug]{ . 
-$_	 ;~rfns ;ldltn] l;kmfl/z u/] adf]lhd cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ sf] ljt/0f of]Uo d'gfkmfaf6 @)*@ 

cfiff9 d;fGtdf sfod /x]sf] r'Qmf k"FhL ?= !,%#,^!,&!,%$^÷– sf] )=&#^* k|ltztn] x'g cfpg] ?= 
!,!#,!(,!^!÷– -cIf/]kL Ps s/f]8 t]x| nfv pGgfO{; xhf/ Ps ;o Ps;¶L ?k}of dfq_ gub nfef+z 
-af]g; z]o/sf] s/ k|of]hgsf nflu ;d]t_ ljt/0f ug]{ ;DaGwL k|:tfj l:js[t ug]{] .

-%_	 ;j{;fwf/0f ;d"xaf6 ;~rfns ;ldltdf k|ltlglwTj ug]{ @ -b'O{_ hgf ;~rfnssf] lgjf{rg ug{] .

-v_ 	ljz]if k|:tfj 
-!_	 ;~rfns ;ldltn] l;kmf/Lz u/] adf]lhd cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ sf] ljt/0f of]Uo d'gfkmfaf6 @)*@ 

cfiff9 d;fGtdf sfod /x]sf] r'Qmf k"FhL ?= !,%#,^!,&!,%$^÷– sf] !$ k|ltztn] x'g cfpg] /sd ?= 
@!,%),^$,)!^÷– -cIf/df PsfO{; s/f]8 krf; nfv rf};ÝL xhf/ ;f]x| ?k}of dfq_af]g; z]o/ ljt/0f 
ug]{ ;DaGwL k|:tfj l:js[t ug]{] .

-@_	 af]g; z]o/ hf/L u/] kZrft ljQLo ;+:yfsf] r'Qmf k"FhL j[l4 x'g] ePsfn] ;f]xL adf]lhd hf/L tyf r'Qmf 
k"FhL ?=!,&%,!@,#%,%^@÷– -cIf/df Ps ca{ krxQ/ s/f]8 afx| nfv k}+tL; xhf/ kfFr ;o af;¶L ?k}of 
dfq_ k'¥ofpg] ;DaGwL k|:tfj l:js[t ug]{] . 

-#_	 af]g; z]o/ hf/L u/] kZrft ljQLo ;+:yfsf] hf/L tyf r'Qmf k"FhL j[l4 x'g] ePsfn] ;f]xL adf]lhd 
ljQLo ;+:yfsf] k|jGwkqsf] bkmf ^-v_ / ^-u_ df ;+zf]wg ug{] . +

-$_	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] cGo O{hfhtkqk|fKt s'g} Ps jf Ps eGbf a9L pko'Qm n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx? 
Ps cfk;df ufEg] ufleg] (Merger) jf k|flKt (Acquisition) ug]{, ;dembf/L kq (Memorandum of 
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Understanding) df x:tfIf/ ug]{, ;DklQ tyf bfloTjsf] d"NofÍg k|ltj]bg (Due Diligence Audit Report) 
tof/ ug{ d"NofÍgstf{sf] lgo'lQm tyf lghsf] kfl/>lds lgwf{/0f ug]{ tyf ufEg]÷ufleg] Pj+ k|flKt;Fu 
;DalGwt k|rlnt sfg"g tyf lgb]{zgx? cg'?k ckgfpg'kg]{ tyf ug'{kg]{ ;Dk"0f{ cfjZos sfo{x? ug{ 
u/fpgsf nflu ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ clVtof/L k|bfg ug]{ . 

-%_ 	ljQLo ;+:yfsf] k|aGwkq tyf lgodfjnLdf ul/Psf] ;+zf]wgsf ;DaGwdf lgodgsf/L lgsfoaf6 s'g} 
;+zf]wg jf km]/abn jf kl/dfh{g jf yk36 ug{ lgb]{zg jf ;'emfj ePdf ;f]xL adf]lhd ug{ u/fpg 
tyf clen]v ubf{ u/fpFbf s]xL ;fdfGo x]/km]/ ug{, ;+zf]wg ;DaGwL sfuhft k|dfl0ft ug{, bflvnf 
ug{ / clen]v u/fO{ lng ;d]t ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldlt jf ;ldltn] tf]s]sf] kbflwsf/LnfO{ 
clVtof/L lbg] .  

-u_ ljljw
;~rfns ;ldltsf] cf1fn] 

     sDkgL ;lrj
;fwf/0f ;ef ;DaGwdf cGo yk hfgsf/L M
!=	 ;ftf} aflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef k|of]hgsf nflu ldlt @)*@÷)(÷@! ut] ! lbg ljQLo ;+:yfsf]] z]o/ 

bflvn vf/]h aGb -Book Close_ /xg]5 . g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh lnld6]8df ldlt @)*@÷)(÷@) ut];DDf 
sf/f]af/ eO{ k|rlnt sfg"g cg';f/ tf]lsPsf] ;dofjlw leqdf o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/ /lhi6«f/ >L 
PGfPdla Soflk6n lnld6]8, afn'jf6f/, sf7df08f}df k|fKt z]o/ gfd;f/L lnvtsf] cfwf/df z]o/wgL 
lstfadf sfod z]o/wgLx?n] ;f] ;efdf efu lng tyf af]g; z]o/ kfpg of]Uo x'g]5g\ .   

@=	 jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lng cfpg] z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?n] cfˆgf] lxtu|fxL kl/ro g+= jf cfˆgf] 
kl/ro v'Ng] s'g} cflwsfl/s kl/rokq ;fydf lnP/ cfO{lbg'x'g cg'/f]w 5 . ;+ul7t ;+:yfaf6 
k|ltlglwTj ug]{ ePdf ;+ul7t ;+:yfaf6 k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ul/Psf] cflwsf/Ls kq lnO{ cfpg'kg]{5 . 

#=	 ;ftf} jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] k|ltj]bg ljQLo ;+:yfsf] j]j;fO{6df /flvg] 5 / ;f] af6 k|fKt ug{ tyf 
cWoog ug{ ;lsg]5 . ;fy} ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/ /lhi6«f/ >L PGfPdla Soflk6n lnld6]8, afn'jf6f/, 
sf7df08f}af6 ;d]t k|fKt ug{ ;lsg]5 . s'g} sf/0fj; pk/f]Qm k|ltj]bg k|fKt gug'{x'g] z]o/wgL 
dxfg'efjx?n] ;ef x'g] lbg ;ef:ynaf6 ;d]t k|fKt ug{ ;Sg'x'g]5 . 

$=	 ;efdf efu lng] k|To]s z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?n] ;ef x'g] :yfgdf /x]sf] pkl:ylt k'l:tsfdf b:tvt 
ug'{kg]{5 . z]o/wgL pkl:ylt k'l:tsf ;ef x'g] lbg laxfg (M)) ah]b]lv v'Nnf /xg]5 . ;fwf/0f ;efdf 
efu lng cfpg] z]o/wgLx?n] ;fwf/0f ;ef;Fu ;DalGwt sfuhft afx]s s'g} emf]nf, kf]sf jf cGo 
;fdfu|L glnO{ cfpg' x'g cg'/f]w ul/Psf] 5 . 

%=	 gfafns z]o/wgLx?sf] tkm{af6 ;+/Ifs -z]o/wgLsf] btf{ lstfjdf pNn]lvt_ n] ;efdf efu lng, 
5nkmn ug{, k|ltlglw lgo'QmL ug{ / dt lbg ;d]t ;Sg]5g . 

^=	 ;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lngsf nflu k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ lgo'Qm ug{ rfxg] z]o/wgLx?n] tf]lsPsf] 9fFrfdf 
o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/wgLnfO{ dfq k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ lgo'Qm ug{ ;Sg]5g\ . o;/L k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ 
lgo'Qm ul/Psf] lgj]]bg ;ef z'? x'g] ;do eGbf slDtdf $* 306f cufj} ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]Gb|Lo 
sfof{no s6x/L–@, df]/Ëdf btf{ u/fO{ ;Sg'kg]{5 .

&=	 z]o/wgLx?af6 p7]sf k|Zg, lh1f;f jf dGtJox?sf] ;DaGwdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 cWoIf jf 
lghaf6 cg'dlt k|fKt JolQmn] ;Daf]wg ug{ ;Sg]5g\ . 

*=	 s'g} z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?nfO{ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;DjGwdf s]xL lh1f;f eP To:tf] Joxf]/f lnlvt ?kdf 
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;ef x'g'eGbf slDtdf & -;ft_ lbg cufj} ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{nodf k7fpg'x'g cg'/f]w ub{5f}+ . 
t/ o;nfO{ 5nkmn / kfl/t x'g] k|:tfjsf] ?kdf ;dfj]z ul/g] 5}g .

(=	 ;j{;fwf/0f ;d"xaf6 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldltdf k|ltlglwTj ug]{ ;~rfnssf] lgjf{rg k|s[of 
tyf sfo{qmd ljQLo ;+:yfsf] æ;~rfns lgjf{rg lgb]{lzsf, @)*@Æ adf]lhd x'g]5 . lgjf{rg ;DaGwL 
sfo{qmd tflnsf ;fwf/0f ;ef x'g] lbgeGbf & lbg cufj} ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;"rgf kf6L Pj+ lgjf{rg 
clws[tsf] sfof{nodf k|sflzt ul/g]5 . 

!)=	 ;j{;fwf/0f ;d"xsf] k|ltlglwTj ug]{ ;~rfns kbsf] lgjf{rgdf pDd]bjf/ x'g rfxg] dtbftf gfdfjnLdf 
gfd btf{ ePsf] z]o/wgLn] ljQLo ;+:yfsf] lgodfjnLdf ePsf] Joj:yf adf]lhd Go'gtd ;+:yfks z]o/ 
cfˆgf] gfddf lnPsf] x'g'kg]{ 5 . ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf k|ltlglwnfO{ ;~rfns kbsf] lgjf{rgdf pDd]bjf/L 
lbg of]Uo dflgg]5 . ;fy} k|rlnt g]kfnsf] sfg'g, sDkgL P]g @)^#, a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf ;DaGwL 
P]g @)&#, g]kfn /fi6« a}+såf/f ;do ;dodf hf/L ul/Psf lgb]{zgx? tyf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] lgjf{rg 
lgb]{lzsf adf]lhd cof]Uotf g7xl/Psf] z]o/wgL pQm ;~rfnssf] pDd]bjf/ x'g of]Uo x'g]5g\ . 

!!=	 æ;~rfns lgjf{rg lgb]{lzsf, @)*@Æ k|fKt ug{ rfx]df o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] gfddf glan a}+s lnld6]8df 
/x]sf] vftf g+= )&)!)!&%)!)@* df ?= @))÷– hDdf u/L ;f] sf] ef}r/ jf qm]l86 P8\efO{; o; 
ljQLo ;+:yfsf] O{d]n info@jeevanbikasmf.com df k7fpg' ePdf O{d]n dfkm{t ;f] lgb]{lzsf pknAw 
u/fO{g]5 . 

!@=	 ;ef ;DalGw cGo sfd sfjf{xL sDkgL P]g, @)^# jf cGo k|rlnt sfg"g, gLlt lgod tyf lgb]{zg 
adf]lhd x'g]5 .

!#=	 ;ftf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DaGwdf cGo yk hfgsf/L cfjZos ePdf o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] kmf]g g+= 
(*)@&(^!(^ df sfof{no ;do leq ;Dks{ ug'{x'g cg'/f]w 5 . 
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t]>f] jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&&÷@)&*
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kk||llttllggllww  llggoo''QQmm  uugg]]{{  llggjj]]bbgg  --kk||ff]]SS;;LL__  kkmmff//dd    
sDklg P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf &! sf] pkbkmf -#_ ;Fu ;DalGwt 

>L ;~rfns ;ldlt 

hLjg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 

s6x/L @, df]/+u . 

 

  lljjiiffoo  MM  kk||llttllggllww  llggoo''QQmm  uu//]]ssff]]  aaff//]]  ..  
 

dxf]bo, 

=================== =======lhNnf= ========== ========= ====== g=kf=÷uf=kf=j8f g+== ====== a:g] d÷xfdL >L ==== ====== ===== 

==== ===== ==== ==== == n] To; sDkgLsf] z]o/wgLsf] x}l;otn] ;+jt\ @)=== === ;fn ================  dlxgf ======== ut] 

====== ===jf/sf lbg x'g] ;fwf/0f ;efdf :jo+ pkl:yt eO{ 5nkmn tyf lg0f{odf ;xefuL x'g g;Sg] ePsfn] 

pQm ;efdf d]/f]÷xfd|f] tkm{af6 efu lng tyf dtbfg ug{sf nflu === === === == == == lhNnf ==== ===== ==== 

g=kf=÷uf=kf= j8f g+ == == a:g] To; sDkgLsf] z]o/wgL >L ======= ======= ======= =========== ========= nfO{ d]/f] 

k|ltlglw dgf]lgt u/L k7fPsf] 5'÷5f}+ . 

 

kk||llttllggllww  llggoo''QQmm  eePPssff]]  JJoollQQmmssff]]  MM––  

b:tvtsf] gd"gf M 

gfdM 

7]ufgf M 

lxtu|fxL -BOID_ g+= M  
                

ldlt M 

 

 
 

-gf]6 M of] lgj]bg jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef x'g'eGbf sDtLdf $* 306f cufj} ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no s6x/Ldf k]z 

u/L;Sg' kg]{5 . PseGbf a9L -k|f]S;L_ sf] gfd pNn]v u/]df k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ kmf/d /2 ul/g]5 ._ 
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tt]]>>ff]]  jjfflliiff{{ss  ;;ffwwff//00ff  ;;eeffddff  ppkkll::yytt  xx''gg  hhff//LL  uull//PPssff]]  

kk||jj]]zz  kkqq  
  

z]o/wgLsf] gfd  =====================================lxtu|fxL (BOID) g+=  
 

z]o/wgLsf] b:tvt =============================   s'n z]o/ ;+Vof  ================   
 

======================================  

ssDDkkggLL  ;;llrrjj  
 

-b|i6Jo M z]o/wgL cfkm}n] ;Dk"0f{ vfnL 7fFpx? eg'{xf]nf . ;ef sIfdf k|j]z ug{ of] k|j]z–kq clgjfo{ x'g]5 ._ 

                

llggjj]]bbss  

======================================  

bb::ttvvtt  
gfdM 

7]ufgf M 

lxtu|fxL -BOID_ g+= M 

                

z]o/ ;+Vof M 

ldlt M 

kk||llttllggllww  llggoo''QQmm  uugg]]{{  llggjj]]bbgg  --kk||ff]]SS;;LL__  kkmmff//dd    
sDklg P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf &! sf] pkbkmf -#_ ;Fu ;DalGwt 

>L ;~rfns ;ldlt 

hLjg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 

s6x/L @, df]/+u . 

 

  lljjiiffoo  MM  kk||llttllggllww  llggoo''QQmm  uu//]]ssff]]  aaff//]]  ..  
 

dxf]bo, 

=================== =======lhNnf= ========== ========= ====== g=kf=÷uf=kf=j8f g+== ====== a:g] d÷xfdL >L ==== ====== ===== 

==== ===== ==== ==== == n] To; sDkgLsf] z]o/wgLsf] x}l;otn] ;+jt\ @)=== === ;fn ================  dlxgf ======== ut] 

====== ===jf/sf lbg x'g] ;fwf/0f ;efdf :jo+ pkl:yt eO{ 5nkmn tyf lg0f{odf ;xefuL x'g g;Sg] ePsfn] 

pQm ;efdf d]/f]÷xfd|f] tkm{af6 efu lng tyf dtbfg ug{sf nflu === === === == == == lhNnf ==== ===== ==== 

g=kf=÷uf=kf= j8f g+ == == a:g] To; sDkgLsf] z]o/wgL >L ======= ======= ======= =========== ========= nfO{ d]/f] 

k|ltlglw dgf]lgt u/L k7fPsf] 5'÷5f}+ . 

 

kk||llttllggllww  llggoo''QQmm  eePPssff]]  JJoollQQmmssff]]  MM––  

b:tvtsf] gd"gf M 

gfdM 

7]ufgf M 

lxtu|fxL -BOID_ g+= M  
                

ldlt M 

 

 
 

-gf]6 M of] lgj]bg jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef x'g'eGbf sDtLdf $* 306f cufj} ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no s6x/Ldf k]z 

u/L;Sg' kg]{5 . PseGbf a9L -k|f]S;L_ sf] gfd pNn]v u/]df k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ kmf/d /2 ul/g]5 ._ 

 

hhLLjjgg  lljjssff;;  nn33''lljjQQ  lljjQQLLoo  ;;++::yyff  llnnlldd66]]88  
tt]]>>ff]]  jjfflliiff{{ss  ;;ffwwff//00ff  ;;eeffddff  ppkkll::yytt  xx''gg  hhff//LL  uull//PPssff]]  

kk||jj]]zz  kkqq  
  

z]o/wgLsf] gfd  =====================================lxtu|fxL (BOID) g+=  
 

z]o/wgLsf] b:tvt =============================   s'n z]o/ ;+Vof  ================   
 

======================================  

ssDDkkggLL  ;;llrrjj  
 

-b|i6Jo M z]o/wgL cfkm}n] ;Dk"0f{ vfnL 7fFpx? eg'{xf]nf . ;ef sIfdf k|j]z ug{ of] k|j]z–kq clgjfo{ x'g]5 ._ 

                

llggjj]]bbss  

======================================  

bb::ttvvtt  
gfdM 

7]ufgf M 

lxtu|fxL -BOID_ g+= M 

                

z]o/ ;+Vof M 

ldlt M 

;ftf}+

t]>f] jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&&÷@)&*
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kk||llttllggllww  llggoo''QQmm  uugg]]{{  llggjj]]bbgg  --kk||ff]]SS;;LL__  kkmmff//dd    
sDklg P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf &! sf] pkbkmf -#_ ;Fu ;DalGwt 

>L ;~rfns ;ldlt 

hLjg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 

s6x/L @, df]/+u . 

 

  lljjiiffoo  MM  kk||llttllggllww  llggoo''QQmm  uu//]]ssff]]  aaff//]]  ..  
 

dxf]bo, 

=================== =======lhNnf= ========== ========= ====== g=kf=÷uf=kf=j8f g+== ====== a:g] d÷xfdL >L ==== ====== ===== 

==== ===== ==== ==== == n] To; sDkgLsf] z]o/wgLsf] x}l;otn] ;+jt\ @)=== === ;fn ================  dlxgf ======== ut] 

====== ===jf/sf lbg x'g] ;fwf/0f ;efdf :jo+ pkl:yt eO{ 5nkmn tyf lg0f{odf ;xefuL x'g g;Sg] ePsfn] 

pQm ;efdf d]/f]÷xfd|f] tkm{af6 efu lng tyf dtbfg ug{sf nflu === === === == == == lhNnf ==== ===== ==== 

g=kf=÷uf=kf= j8f g+ == == a:g] To; sDkgLsf] z]o/wgL >L ======= ======= ======= =========== ========= nfO{ d]/f] 

k|ltlglw dgf]lgt u/L k7fPsf] 5'÷5f}+ . 

 

kk||llttllggllww  llggoo''QQmm  eePPssff]]  JJoollQQmmssff]]  MM––  

b:tvtsf] gd"gf M 

gfdM 

7]ufgf M 

lxtu|fxL -BOID_ g+= M  
                

ldlt M 

 

 
 

-gf]6 M of] lgj]bg jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef x'g'eGbf sDtLdf $* 306f cufj} ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no s6x/Ldf k]z 

u/L;Sg' kg]{5 . PseGbf a9L -k|f]S;L_ sf] gfd pNn]v u/]df k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ kmf/d /2 ul/g]5 ._ 

 

hhLLjjgg  lljjssff;;  nn33''lljjQQ  lljjQQLLoo  ;;++::yyff  llnnlldd66]]88  
tt]]>>ff]]  jjfflliiff{{ss  ;;ffwwff//00ff  ;;eeffddff  ppkkll::yytt  xx''gg  hhff//LL  uull//PPssff]]  

kk||jj]]zz  kkqq  
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hLjg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf]
;ftf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 

cWoIf Ho"sf] k|ltj]bg

cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg"efjx?,
o; hLjg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf] ;ftf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf pkl:yt z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?, 
lgodgsf/L lgsfosf k|ltlglwHo"x? ;~rfnsHo"x?, ;Dk"0f{ cltly dxfg'efjx? / ljQLo ;+:yfsf sd{rf/Lx?df o; 
ul/dfdo ;efdf xflb{s :jfut ub{5' .
ul/jL /xLt g]kfn lgdf{0fsf] d'Vo kl/sNkgfsf ;fy lj=;+=@)%$ ;fndf hLjg ljsf; ;dfh gfds u}/;/sf/L 
;+:yfsf] :yfkgf eof] . z'?jftdf % j6f uf=lj=;=x?nfO{ sfo{If]q agfO{ To; If]qdf JofKt /x]sf] ul/aL, clzIff 
/ :jf:Yo ;d:ofx?sf] ;'wf/sf] nflu sfd ul//x]sf] ;+:yfn] lj=;+=@)%( ;fndf g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 ljQLo 
dWo:ttfsf] cg'dlt k|fKt u/L art ;+sng ug]{ tyf C0f nufgLsf] sf/f]jf/sf] z'?jft u/]sf] lyof] . o; ;+:yfn] 
ljleGg cf/f]x cj/f]wx? kf/ ub}{ ljQLo sf/f]jf/nfO{ cem Jojl:yt ug]{ p2]Zo cg'?k lj=;+=@)^( >fj0f @^ ut] 
hLjg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=gfds sDkgL btf{ u/L @)&% kmfNu'g # ut] g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] ljQLo 
sf/f]jf/ ug]{ O{hfhtkq k|fKt u/L @)&% kmfNu'g !^ ut] b]lv ljlwjt ?kdf n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ?kdf ;]jf 
k|bfg ug{ z'ef/De u/]sf] xf] . o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] :yfkgfsfnb]lv g} cfkm\gf] ;]jf lj:tf/sf ;fy} ljQLo k|ultsf 
;"rsx?df cToGt} /fd|f] glthf k|:t't ug{ ;kmn ePsf] 5 . u'0f:t/Lo ljQLo ;]jf k|jfx tyf ;fdflhs ;]jfsf] 
If]qdf o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] g]kfndf Ps gd'gf :yflkt u/]sf] 5 . oL sfo{x? lg/Gt/ u/L/xg] xfd|f] k|ltj4tf /x]sf] 
5 . ;fy} /fli6«o xLtnfO{ ;jf]{k/L 7fGb} ljQLo ;]jfsf] u'0f:t/df lgoldt ;'wf/ ul/ ;]jf lj:tf/ ug{ ljQLo ;+:yf 
k|ltj4 /x]sf] 5 . 
ljQLo ;:yfn] cf=j= @)*!÷*@ sf] cGTo;Dddf #! j6f lhNnfdf !^) j6f zfvf sfof{no dfkm{t s'n #,^&,$@# 
ljkGg kl/jf/nfO{ ;]jf k|jfx ul//x]sf] 5 . cf=j=@)*!÷*@ df ljQLo ;+:yfn] xfl;n u/]sf d'Vo pknAwLx? b]xfo 
adf]lhd k|:t't ul/Psf] 5 .

!_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ut jif{sf] sf/f]jf/sf] l;+xfjnf]sg M
	 ljut jif{b]lv ljZjJofkL ?kdf z'? ePsf] cfly{s sf/f]jf/sf] lu/fj6sf] c;/ g]kfnsf] cy{tGqdf klg k/]sf] 5 

/ ;f] xfn;Dd klg ;'wf/ eO{;s]sf] 5}g . vl:sbf] cfly{s sf/f]jf/sf sf/0f Jofkf/, Joj;fo tyf /f]huf/Ldf 
cfPsf] ;+s'rgn] n3'ljQ If]qnfO{ klg c;/ u/]sf] 5 . ;fy} s]xL ;d"x tyf JolQmx?n] n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx? 
lj/f]wL ultljlw ;+rfng u/L n3'ljQ sfo{qmddf cj/f]w >[hgf ug]{, sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ ufnLunf}h tyf xftkft 
ug]{, ;f]emfl;wf ;b:ox?nfO{ ljQLo ;]jf pkef]u ug{ afwf k'¥ofpg] sfo{ eO{/x]sf] / ;f]af6 ;+:yfsf] clwsf+z 
zfvfx?df c;/ kf/]sf] 5 . o; ljifd kl/l:yltdf klg ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] lgb{]zg / Joj:yfkgsf] 
of]hgfa4 sfo{ ;~rfng tyf ;a} sd{rf/Lx?sf] cys kl/>daf6 r'gf}tLx?nfO{ cj;/sf ?kdf kl/0ft  
ub}{ clt ljkGg tyf c;xfo kl/jf/nfO{ cfod'ns sfo{df ;fd]n u/fO{ ;xof]u ug]{ sfo{x? cToGt k|efjsf/L 
9+udf ePsf 5g\ . 

	 cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df ljQLo ;+:yfn] xfl;n u/]sf d'Vo pknAwLx? lgDg adf]lhd /x]sf 5g\ .
ljj/0f @)*) c;f/ @)*! c;f/ @)*@ c;f/

sfo{qmd k'u]sf] lhNnf 24 31 31

zfvf ;+Vof 160 160 160

sd{rf/L ;+Vof 930 997 960

;b:o ;+Vof 343,451 352,259 367,423

s'n ;DklQ -?= xhf/df_ 24,560,528 28,229,704 30,099,855

r"Qmf k'hL -?= xhf/df_ 1,182,034 1,347,519 1,536,172
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ljj/0f @)*) c;f/ @)*! c;f/ @)*@ c;f/

hu]8f sf]if -?= xhf/df_ 1,250,441 1,341,692 1,548,788

s'n lgIf]k -?= xhf/df_ 10,031,794 10,533,043 12,414,843

v'b shf{ tyf ;fk6 -?= xhf/df_ 23,433,451 27,214,450 28,883,993

Aofh cfDbfgL -?= xhf/df_ 3,538,110 3,593,892 4,035,481

Aofh vr{ -?= xhf/df_ 2,045,310 2,102,463 1,933,928

v'b Jofh cfDbfgL -?= xhf/df_ 1,492,800 1,491,430 2,101,552

v'b sldzg tyf cGo ;~rfng cfDbfgL -?= xhf/df_ 212,089 277,367 309,626

sd{rf/L vr{ -?= xhf/df_ 725,381 750,242 994,211

cGo ;+rfng vr{ -?= xhf/df_ 140,093 138,577 168,466

;~rfng d'gfkmf -?= xhf/df_ 372,938 178,890 990,582

v'b d'gfkmf -?= xhf/df_ 342,064 210,049 706,429

k|lt ;]o/ cfDbfgL -?=_ 28.94 16.61 45.99

lgis[o shf{ / s'n shf{ cg'kft 2.39% 4.65% 6.65%

s'n ;DklQ
;dLIff cjlwdf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s'n ;DklQ ̂ =^@ k|ltztn] 
a9]sf] 5, of] /sdsf] cfwf/df ?= ! ca{ *& s/f]8n]  
a9]sf] xf] . cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! sf] cGTodf ?= @* ca{ 
@# s/f]8 /x]sf] s'n ;DklQ, @)*@ c;f/ d;fGtdf ?= #) 
ca{ !) s/f]8 k'u]sf] 5 . 

k"“hL tyf hu]8f sf]if
cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df v'b gfkmf, gfkmf gf]S;fg lx;fa 
afF8kmfF8 tyf lgodgsf/L ;dfof]hg kZrft\ ljQLo 
;+:yfsf] hu]8f tyf sf]ifdf ?= # ca{ ** s/f]8 k'u]sf] 5 
. cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! sf] cGTodf ?= # ca{ @( s/f]8 
/x]sf] lyof] . of] !&=*% k|ltztn] j[l4 ePsf] 5 .

lgIf]k ;+sng
@)*@ c;f/ d;fGtdf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s'n lgIf]k  
?= !@ ca{ $! s/f]8 k'u]sf] 5 . ;+:yfn] ;dLIff cjlwdf 
?= ! ca{ ** s/f]8n] lgIf]k a[l4 u/]sf] 5 . of] !&=*& 
k|ltztn] a[l4 ePsf] 5 . 



hLjg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8

;ftf}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*!÷*@

7

shf{ kl/rfng
@)*@ c;f/ d;fGt;Dddf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] shf{ tyf ;fk6 
?=@* ca{ ** s/f]8 k'u]sf] 5 . ;dLIff cjlwdf ?= ! ca{ 
^& s/f]8 shf{ a9]sf] 5 . h'g !# k|ltzt j[l4 x'g cfpFb5 .

;+:yfdf ePsf] shf{sf] clwsf+z efu s[lif, pBd, ;fgf 
tyf demf}nf Joj;fo Pj+ gofF Joj;fo z'?jft ug{sf ;fy} 
cfjf; / tTsfnLg cfjZostf kl/k'lt{ ug{sf nflu nufgL 
ePsf 5g\ .

 

Aofh cfDbfgL
cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df ljQLo ;+:yfsf] Aofh cfDbfgL ?= $ 
ca{ # s/f]8 ePsf] 5 . h'g ut cf=j=df ?= # ca{ %( 
s/f]8 /x]sf] lyof] . of] !@=@( k|ltztn] a[l4 xf] . 

Aofh vr{
cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s'n Aofh vr{ ?= ! 
ca{ (# s/f]8 /x]sf] 5 . h'g ut cf=j=df ?= @ ca{ !) 
s/f]8 /x]sf] lyof] . of] *=)@ k|ltztn] 36]sf] 5 .  

cGo ;+rfng vr{
ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cGo ;+rfng vr{ -x|f; tyf ckn]vg vr{ 
;lxt_ ?= !^ s/f]8 *$ nfv ePsf] 5 h'g cl3NNff] jif{ 
?= !# s/f]8 *% /x]sf] lyof] . of] @!=%& k|ltztn] a[l4 
ePsf] 5 .
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v'b d'gfkmf
cf=j=@)*!÷*@ df ljQLo ;+:yfsf] v'b d'gfkmf ?= &) 
s/f]8 ePsf] 5 . h'g ut cf=j=df ?= @! s/f]8 /x]sf] 
lyof] . of] @#^=#@ k|ltztn] a9L xf] .

lgis[o shf{
ljQLo ;+:yfn] shf{ c;'nLdf ljz]if Wofg lbPsf] ePtf 
klg n3'ljQ ;+:yf lj?4sf] ljleGg ultljlwn] c;'nLdf 
lgs} k|efj kf/]sf]n] @)*@ c;f/ d;fGt;Dddf o; 
ljQLo ;+:yfsf] lgis[o shf{ a[l4 eO{ ^=^% k|ltzt  
k'u]sf] 5 . h'g cl3Nnf] jif{ $=^% k|ltzt dfq /x]sf] 
lyof] . 

-@_ 	 cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ cjlwdf /flvPsf] nIo / To;df ePsf] k|ult M
         cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ sf] cGTo;Dddf s'n #,&$,(*@ hgf ;b:o k'¥ofpg] nIo /flvPsf]df s'n #,^&,$@# 

hgf ;b:o k'u]sf] 5 . nufgLdf /lx/x]sf] C0f ?= #$ ca{ #! s/f]8 k'¥ofpg] nIo /flvPsf]df cfly{s jif{ 
@)*!÷*@ c;f/;Dddf ?=@* ca{ ** s/f]8 k'u]sf] 5 . lgIf]k tkm{ s'n ?= !# ca{ #$ s/f]8 k'¥ofpg] nIo 
/flvPsf]df s'n lgIf]k ?= !@ ca{ #) s/f]8 k'u]sf] 5 .

-#_ 	 cfly{s jif{ @)*@÷*# df /flvPsf] cg'dflgt nIo M
         	rfn' cf=a= @)*@÷*# df ljQLo ;+:yfn] s'n #! lhNnfdf sfo{qmd ;+rfng ul//x]sf] 5 eg] !( j6f lhNnf 

sfof{nox? -Sn:6/_ dfkm{t !^) j6f zfvfx?sf] cg'udg eO{/x]sf] 5 . o; jif{ !$ j6f zfvf tyf @ j6f 
lhNnf sfof{nox? yk ug]{ of]hgf /x]sf] 5 . sfo{qmd lj:tf/sf qmddf rfn' cf=a= @)*@÷*# df ePsf] s'n 
!&$ j6f zfvf sfof{no dfkm{t yk #$,!)@ ;lqmo ;b:o / @(,^#( C0fL a[l4 ug]{ of]hgf /x]sf] 5 . rfn' 
cf=a=df nufgLdf /lx/x]sf] C0f /sddf ?=$ ca{ @# s/f]8 j[l4 u/L ## ca{ $% s/f]8 k'¥ofpg] of]hgf /x]sf] 
5 . To:t} @ ca{ $) s/f]8 art j[l4 u/L !$ ca{ #% s/f]8 k'¥ofpg] nIo /x]sf] 5 . rfn' cf=a= @)*@÷*# 
sf] cGTo;Dddf s'n ;+rfng d'gfkmf (@ s/f]8 / v'b d'gfkmf %* s/f]8 !* nfv k'¥ofpg] nIo /flvPsf] 5 . 

$_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] sfo{qmd lj:tf/
	 cf=j=@)*@÷*# sf] cGTo;Dddf !&$ j6f zfvf dfkm{t ljQLo ;+:yfn] sfo{qmd lj:tf/ ug]{ of]hgf /fv]sf] 5 

eg] n3'ljQ ;]jfaf6 5'6]sf 3/kl/jf/nfO{ ;d]6\g] p2]Zo cg'?k b'u{d kxf8L If]q tyf ef/tsf] l;dfgf hf]l8Psf 
clt lk5l8Psf If]qnfO{ k|fyldstfdf /flv sfo{qmd lj:tf/ ul/g] 5 .

	 cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ df ;ls|o clws[t 6]n/ ;b:o -ATM-Authorised Teller Member_ @&% hgf /x]sf] 5 
eg] cf=j=@)*@÷*# df %@! hgf k'¥ofpg] nIo /flvPsf] 5 . æPs 6f]n Ps Pl6PdÆ cleofgnfO{ 6f]n6f]ndf 
lj:tf/ u/L l8lh6n ljQLo sf/f]jf/nfO{ k|f]T;fxg ul/Psf] 5 . To:t} ;b:ox?nfO{ ljQLo sf/f]jf/ ug{ ;xh 
xf];\ eGg] p2]Zon] 6f]n6f]ndf l8lh6n ;]jf nufot df]afO{n a}+lsËsf] ;d]t Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5 . ;b:ox?n] 
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ufpF3/ 6f]n l5d]sdf g} ATM dfkm{t jrt /fVg] tyf lemSg kfpg] Joj:yfnfO{ lj:tf/ ul/g]5 . ;fy} ATM 
dfkm{t vftfdf clu|d jrt hDdf x'g] ePsf]n] gub /lxt s]Gb| a}7s ;+rfng ug{ ;xh x'g]5 / o;n] 
;b:ox?sf] ;dosf] art ePsf] 5 eg] ATM nufot ;Dk"0f{ ;b:ox? dfkm{t dr]{G6 ;]jfx? klg ;+rfng 
u/]sf] 5 . 

  
-%_ 	 sd{rf/L, ;b:o tflnd tyf j[lQ ljsf; M
         	o; ljQLo ;+:yfdf sfo{/t sd{rf/L Pj+ o;df cfj4 ;b:ox? g} ljQLo ;+:yfsf cfwf/:tDe ePsf]n] sd{rf/L 

Pj+ ;b:ox?nfO{ cfjZostf cg';f/ ljleGg lsl;dsf Ifdtf clej[l4 tyf l;k ljsf; tflndx? pknJw 
u/fpFb} cfPsf] 5 . cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ df tk;Ln cg';f/ ;b:o tyf sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ cfGtl/s tyf afXo 
tflnd, uf]i7L tyf ;Dd]ngx?df ;xefuL u/fO{Psf] 5 .

qm=;+= ljj/0f sfo{qmd ;+Vof ;xefuL ;+Vof

! ;b:osf] cGt/lqmof, tflnd, uf]i7L tyf e|d0f 5,491 49,970

 s ljQLo ;fIf/tf 5,186 20,286 
 v l;k ljsf; tflnd 110 3,543
 u cWoog e|d0f 82 3,018 

 3 s]Gb| k|d"v uf]i7L tyf ljQLo ;fIf/tf 113 23,123 

@ sd{rf/Lx?sf] tflnd tyf uf]i7L 70 2,382

 s cfGtl/s 70 2,344

 v afXo  38

# sd{rf/Lx?sf] cWoog e|d0f 4 53

 s :jb]z 1 30

 v ljb]z 3 23

^_ 	 k|ljlw ljsf; M
         	o; ljQLo ;+:yfdf "Finlite" Web based Online Software af6 tYof+s s]Gb|Ls[t ug'{sf ;fy} b}lgs sf/f]jf/sf] 

clen]v r':t b'?:t /flv cg'udg k|0ffnLnfO{ k|efjsf/L agfO{Psf] 5 . ztk|ltzt sd{rf/Lx?af6 Android 
df]afO{n dfkm{t l8lh6n sf/f]af/ ;+rfng eO{/x]sf] 5 . xfn ;b:ox?sf] ls:tf c;'nL, PPI+ kmd{ eg]{, C0f 
ljZn]if0f tyf ;b'kof]lutf hfFr cflb sfo{x? df]afO{n dfkm{t g} x'g] u/]sf] 5 . h;n] ubf{ sfuhL sfdsf] 
emGeml6nf] k|lqmofnfO{ s]xL xb;Dd lj:yflkt u/]sf] 5 / ;dosf] klg jrt ePsf] 5, ;fy} o;n] sd{rf/Lx?sf] 
pTkfbsTjdf ;d]t j[l4 ePsf] 5 .

	 dfgj ;+zfwg Aoj:yfkg;Fu ;DalGwt sfo{x?nfO{ r':t / cBfjlws agfpgsf nflu HR Software, ;DklQ 
Aoj:yfkgsf nflu Fixed Asset Management Software / cGo Inventory sf] df}Hbft cj:yfsf] hfgsf/Lsf] 
nflu Inventory software ;d]t FinLite Software df ;dflxt u/L k|of]udf NofO{Psf] 5 .
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	 ;b:ox?nfO{ gub /lxt sf/f]jf/df cEo:t u/fpg tyf df]afO{n a}+lsË sf/f]jf/ ;+rfng ug{ JBLBSL Smart 
Banking gfds df]afO{n PlKns];g k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 . o; Application sf] k|of]u u/L ;b:ox?n] 3/d} a;]/ 
cfkm\gf] C0f tyf jrt;Fu ;DalGwt sf/f]jf/x?sf af/]df hfgsf/L k|fKt ug{sf ;fy} df]afO{n, l6eL, O{G6/g]6, 
ljw't tyf vfg]kfgLsf] lan e'QmfgL ug{ Pj+ h'g;'s} a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx?df ePsf] /sd cfkm\gf] vftfdf 
6«fG;km/ ug{ / cfkm\gf] vftfsf] /sd cGo a}+sdf ;d]t x:tfGt/0f ug{ ;lsg] Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5, ;fy} QR 
:Sofg dfkm{t klg h'g;'s} e'QmfgLx? ug{ ;Sg] Joj:yf /x]sf] 5 . of] Pk dfkm{t u|fxs ;b:ox?nfO{ ljljw 
ljifox?sf] hfgsf/L tyf dxTjk"0f{ ;"rgfx? ;d]t k|bfg ug{] ul/Psf]] 5 .  

-&_   ljk|]if0f -Remittance_ ;]jf M 
	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] b]z ljb]zaf6 ljk|]if0f dfkm{t cfPsf] /sdnfO{ ljleGg zfvfx? dfkm{t /sd k7fpg] / e'QmfgL 

lbg] Joj:yf u/]sf] 5 . l56f] 5l/tf] ?kdf ;dodf g} /]ld6fG; ;]jf e'QmfgLsf] nflu ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]Gb|Lo 
sfof{nodf sfp06/ ;+rfng ul/Psf] 5 eg] s]xL zfvfx?df l/;]K;lgi6sf] Joj:yf u/L ;xh ?kdf ;b:ox?nfO{ 
;]jf lbg] sfo{ eO{/x]sf] 5 . xfn s]xL ljk|]if0f sDkgLx?af6 k7fO{Psf] /sd l;w} ;b:osf] vftfdf hDdf x'g] 
Joj:yf ;d]t u/]sf] 5 . xfn;Dd tk;Ln cg';f/sf] ljk|]if0f sDkgLx? dfkm{t ;]jf lbg] sfo{ eO{/x]sf] 5 .

S .No . Associate Organization Domestic / International 
1 IME Domestic/International
2 IPAY Remit Domestic/International
3 Himal Remit Domestic/International
4 GME Remit/Best Remit Domestic/International
5 Prabhu Remit Domestic/International
6 ATT Remit (Western Union) International
7 Samsara Money Transfer Domestic/International
8 IME Pay Service Domestic
9 Muktinath Remit Domestic
10 Kumari Remit Domestic/International
11 Nepal Remit Domestic/International
12 City Remit Domestic/International
13 esewa Money Transfer Domestic/International

	 cf=j= @)*!÷*@ sf] cGTo ;Dddf ePsf] ljk|]if0f sf/f]jf/sf] ljj/0f o; k|sf/ /x]sf] 5 M
qm=;+= ljj/0f ;+Vof -k6s_ /sd ?=
! ljk|]if0f e'QmfgL (Remittance Payment) #&,@^! 1,80,60,02,677
@ ljk|]if0f k7fPsf] (Remittance Send) !,^(^ 79,63,060

hDdf 1,81,39,65,737
-*_ 	 r'Qmf k"“hLdf j[l4 M	
         o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] clws[t k"FhL ?= @ ca{ /x]sf] 5 eg] hf/L tyf r'Qmf k"FhL ?= ! ca{ #$ s/f]8 &% nfv 

!* xhf/ ( ;oaf6 j[l4 eO{ ! ca{ %# s/f]8 ^! nfv &! xhf/ % ;o $^ k'u]sf] 5 . 
 -(_ 	/fhZjdf of]ubfg M
	 rfn' cf=j=@)*!÷*@ df o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] g]kfn ;/sf/nfO{ b]xfo cg';f/sf] /fhZjdf of]ubfg u/]sf] 5 M

qm=;+= /fhZj zLif{s /sd ?=
! ;+:yfut cfos/ $!,^*,)),)))=))
@ lgIf]kstf{x?sf] artsf] Aofh s/ #,(),^@,&#%=&!
# sd{rf/Lx?sf] kfl/>lds cfos/ @,%*,&$,^^(=!!
$ >f]tdf s/s§L @%,*^,#()=&!
 hDdf $*,$#,@#,&(%=%#
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-!)_ ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTjM 
	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj cGtu{t ljleGg ;fdflhs sfo{x?sf] nflu ;xof]u ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . ljQLo 

;fIf/tf sfo{qmd ;~rfng, :s'n, ahf/, d7 dlGb/ ;/;kmfO{ sfo{qmd, a[Iff/f]k0f sfo{qmd, :yfgLo :t/df 
;~rflnt ;fdflhs sfo{qmddf ;xeflutf tyf ;xof]u, af9L, klx/f], x'/L atf; tyf cfunfuL h:tf k|fs[lts 
k|sf]kjf6 lkl8t :yfgLo / clt ljkGg, /f]uL tyf Psn dlxnf÷k'?ifx?nfO{ ;xof]u ug]{ sfo{x? ul//x]sf] 5 . 
o; cfly{s aif{df ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj sf]ifdf ut aif{sf] d'gfkmfsf] ! k|ltztn] x'g cfpg] /sd ? 
@!,)),$() .%* dfq /x]sf] ePtf klg ;+:yfn] tkl;n cg';f/sf] vr{ u/]sf] 5 .

qm=;+=  vr{sf zLif{sx?  /sd -?=_
1 lzIff &,&$,@@*

2 :jf:Yo !@,!#)

3 dfgjLo ;xof]u tyf /fxt #,%*,**)

4 k|fs[lts ;Dkbf #,^!,^*%

5 jftfj/0f %,((,#^%

6 ljQLo ;fIf/tf @,*&,@^%

7 lbuf] lasf; nIo )

8 cGo &,^*,&@^

 hDdf vr{ #!,^@,@&(
     o; sfo{qmdnfO{ cem Jojl:yt tyf lj:tf/ ul/ lg/Gt/tf lbg g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgb]{zg adf]lhd d'gfkmfaf6 

x/]s aif{ lglZrt /sd 5'6\ofO{ ;f] /sdaf6 vr{ ul/g] Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5  .

-!!_ 	u|fxs ;+/If0f ;DaGwL dxTjk"0f{ ultljlwx?M– 
	 -s_ u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]if 
	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;kmntfsf] cfwf/ o;sf] ;]jf k|lt ;Gt'i6 u|fxs g} x'g\ . cfkm\gf u|fxs ;b:ox? ;+:yf;Fu cfj4 

u/fO/fVg pgLx?sf] ;+/If0f / ljsf;df Wofg lbg' cfjZos x'G5 . o;af6 g} ;+:yfsf] bLuf]kgf / ljsf;sf] cfwf/ 
aG5 . o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] cfkm\gf u|fxssf] ;+/If0f / ljsf;sf] nflu g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgb]{zg adf]lhd x/]s cfly{s 
jif{sf] v'b d'gfkmfsf] !Ü /sd u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]ifdf hDdf u/]sf] 5 . o; sf]ifaf6 u|fxs ;b:ox?sf] ;fd'lxs lxt, 
;d:ofdf k/]sf C0fLx?sf] ;'/If0f, pgLx?sf] lzIff / Ifdtf tyf l;k ljsf; nufotsf sfo{sf] nflu /sd vr{ 
ug{] ul/Psf] 5 / of] sf]if ;+rfngsf] nflu 5'§} æu|fxs ;+/If0f sf]if ;+rfng sfo{ljlwÆ tof/ ul/Psf] 5 . cfly{s jif{ 
@)*!÷*@ df u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]if dfkm{t lgDg adf]lhd vr{ ul/Psf] 5 .

qm=;+= vr{sf zLif{sx? /sd -?=_

1 ;b:ox?sf] cWoog e|d0f $),!^,(($

2 s]Gb| k|d'v uf]i7L, cGt/lqmof tyf ljQLo ;fIf/tf @,(),*(,)#)

3 ;b:ox?nfO{ Ifdtf clej[l4 tflnd @#,@$,&*%

4 ;b:osf 5f]/f5f]/Lx?nfO{ z}lIfs ;fdflu| tyf 5fqj[lQ %(,)(,*%@



hLjg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8

;ftf}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*!÷*@

12

5 /fxt e'QmfgL -;'Ts]/L, ck|]zg, ;k{b+z cflb_ !,)$,*(,^$^

6 k|sf]kdf k/]sf] ;b:ox?nfO{ /fxt %,(%,%*%

7 clt ljkGg kl/jf/nfO{ ;xof]u %,%^,!*@

8 :jf:Yo ;r]tgf tyf 3fts /f]u ;xof]u -h:t} SofG;/, d[uf}nf lkl8t cflb_ !),&#,)((

9 ;b:ox?sf] b'3{6gf jLdf vr{ #!,$(,!#)

10 t/sf/L v]tL ljpljt/0f tyf kz'kfng k|fljlws ;xof]u @^,@%,#*@

hDdf vr{ %,(*,@(,^*^

	 -v_	shf{ tyf sfhlqmof jLdf M 
	 ;b:o tyf ;b:osf] cleefjssf] d[To'n] ubf{ kl/jf/df k/]sf] tTsflng cfly{s ef/ sd ug{ tyf sfhlqmof vr{df 

;d]t ;xof]u xf];\ eGg] p2]Zo /fvL ljQLo ;+:yfn] C0f / sfhlqmof jLdfsf] Joj:yf u/]sf] 5 . ;b:o tyf ;b:osf] 
>Ldfg\÷>Ldltsf] d[To' ePdf lghsf] gfddf /x]sf] afFsL C0f ldgfxf ug]{ nufot sfhlqmof ug{ ;d]t /sd k|bfg ug{ 
jLdf sDkgL;Fu ;xsfo{ u/L clt Go'g z"Ns /fvL of] jLdf ul/Psf] 5 . of] jLdf cGtu{t ;b:ox?nfO{ cf=j=@)*!÷*@ 
df tk;Ln cg';f/sf] /fxt k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 .

cf=j=
sfhlqmof jLdf e'QmfgL shf{ ljdf e'QmfgL

;+Vof /sd ?= ;+Vof /sd ?=
@)*)÷*! ;Dd @,)$! @,)$,)),))) !,%!& !^,(),#@,*!!

@)*!÷*@ ;Dd @,!)* @,!),*),))) !,$^^ !*,&@,%&,!$(

	 -u_	 hLjg jLdf M 
	 eljiodf x'g ;Sg] hf]lvd Go"lgs/0fsf ;fy} art ug]{ jfgLsf] 

ljsf; u/L ;b:o tyf kl/jf/nfO{ cfly{s ;xof]u k'uf];\ eGg] 
clek|fon] ljQLo ;+:yfn] jLdf sDkgLsf] ;xsfo{df ;b:o tyf 
;b:osf] kl/jf/sf] hLjg jLdf u/]sf] 5 . jLdfn] clgjfo{ art 
ug]{ afgL a;fO{ kl/jf/sf] hf]lvd ;d]t sd u/]sf] 5 . artsf] 
cfjZostf tyf hf]lvd ljkGgdf g} a9L x'g] tyf jLdfsf] kx'Fr 
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ljkGgdf gePsf] x'gfn] jLdfsf] kx'FrnfO{ u|fld0f ljkGg kl/jf/;Dd k'¥ofpg cfjZos 7fgL of] jLdf nfu' 
ul/Psf] 5 . cf=j=@)*!÷*@ ;Dd tk;Ln cg';f/sf] ;b:o tyf cleefjssf] jLdf ePsf]df lgGgfg';f/sf] 
d[To'bfjL e'QmfgL ul/Psf] 5 . 

cf=j= ;ls|o jLldt ;+Vof -;Dd_
d[To' bfaL e'QmfgL

;+Vof /sd ?=
@)*)÷*! ;Dd 44,301 179 1,29,62,534
@)*! ÷*@ ;Dd 38,573 155 1,06,68,161

	 gofF jLdf ug{] sfo{ aGb ul/Psf] 5 . 

	 -3_	 kz' jLdf M 
	 cfsl:ds b'3{6gfaf6 kg{ uPsf] cfly{s ef/nfO{ sd ug{ ;b:ox?n] 

kz' kfng C0f lnO{ v/Lb u/]sf] kz'x?sf] jLdf clgjfo{ ul/Psf] 
5 . C0f nufgLsf] ! k|ltzt dfq jLdf z'Nsaf6 () k|ltzt;Dd 
Ifltk"lt{ kfpg] ePsf]n] kz' jLdfn] ;b:ox?nfO{ 7'nf] cfly{s ef/
af6 hf]ufpg] u/]sf] 5 . cf=j=@)*!÷*@ df tk;Ln cg';f/sf] kz' 
jLdf Ifltk"lt{ k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 .

cf=j=
jLdf ul/Psf] kz' Ifltk"lt{ k|bfg u/]sf] kz'

;+Vof lk|ldod ;+sng ?= ;+Vof /sd ?=

@)*)÷*! ;Dd @,##( @*,#(,#(% ^) %#,@%,#))

@)*!÷*@ ;Dd @,#*# @*,)&,*^) && ^%,&),)))

	 -ª_	 b'3{6gf jLdf M 
	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfdf cfj4 ;b:ox?n] hLjg ;'/Iff art cGtu{tsf] 

Go'gtd df}Hbft art vftf vf]Nbf u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]ifaf6 ! jif{sf] 
nflu ;b:o tyf lghsf] >Ldfgsf] ?=!÷! nfvsf] b'3{6gf tyf 
?=!÷! nfvsf] -b'3{6gfdf kl/ pkrf/ u/fPdf_ cf}iflw pkrf/ 
jLdf ;'lglZrt u/]sf] 5 . ;fy} d[tssf] kfly{j z/L/ Joj:yfkgsf] 
nflu ?=!)÷!) xhf/sf] sfhlqmof vr{ ;d]t ;'lglZrt u/]sf] 5 . 
o;n] ;b:ox?nfO{ art ug{ xf};nf k|fKt ePsf] dx;'; ePsf] 
5  . cf=j=@)*!÷*@ df o; jLdf jfkt e'QmfgL ul/Psf] /fxt 
lgDgfg';f/ /x]sf] 5 M–

cf=j= jLldt ;b:o ;+Vof
cf}iflw pkrf/ jfkt ;'ljwf kfPsf] b'3{6gf jfkt ;'ljwf kfPsf] 
;+Vof /sd ?= ;+Vof /sd ?=

@)*)÷*! ;Dd $,)($ ! !,)),))) @ @,)),)))

@)*!÷*@ ;Dd %,^^& $ !,$$,@^$ @ @,)),)))

-!@_	o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf cleofgx?M–
	 hLjg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8n] n3'ljQ sfo{qmdsf] ;fy;fy} CSR / CPF dfkm{t afnaflnsf, 

lszf]/L, ;'s'Daf;L nufot b]znfO{ g} ljleGg If]qdf ;xof]u k'Ug] lsl;dsf cleofgx? ;+rfng ub}{ cfPsf] 
5 . ljQLo ;+:yfn] oL cleofgx? dfkm{t ul/aLsf] /]vfd'lg /x]sf kl/jf/x?df cfwf/e't cfjZostfsf] kxF'r 
k'¥ofpg ;kmn ePsf] 5  . 

	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf cleofgx? M–
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	 -v_ 	l8lh6n cleofg M–
	 -!_ 	 Ps 6f]n Ps ATM M 
	 ef}uf]lns ?kdf ljs6 tyf u|fld0f If]qx?df k/Dk/fut 

n3'ljQ sfo{s|d dfkm{t ;]jf k|bfg ubf{ vlr{nf] Pj+ 
;dodf ;]jf k|bfg ug{ hl6n eO{/x]sf] jt{dfg 
kl/k]Iodf ;+:yfdf cfj4 Ps ;b:o dfkm{t ;d'xdf 
cfj4 cGo ;b:ox?nfO{ l8lh6n k|ljlw k|of]u ul/ 
n3'ljQ ;]jf k|bfg ug]{ tyf ljs6 tyf u|fld0f If]qdf 
;]jf lj:tf/nfO{ ;xh agfpgsf nflu l8lh6n ljQLo 
;]jf ;+rfng ul/Psf] 5  . a}+s ;Ddsf] kx'FrnfO{ ;xh 
agfpg, cfkm\g} ufpF3/df g} a}+s h:tf] ;]jf kfpg 
l8lh6n sf/f]jf/sf] dxTjk"0f{ e'ldsf x'g] ePsf]n] æPs 
6f]n Ps ATMÆ (ATM-Authorised Teller Member) 
sf] gf/f ;lxt of] ;]jf ;+rfng ul/Psf] 5  . 

	 ;b:ox?n] cfkm\gf] 6f]ndf g} art hDdf ug{ / e}k/L cfpg] ;d:ofx?df cfkmgf] art /sd ATM -clws[t 
6]n/ ;b:o_ dfkm{t ;lhn} lemSg kfpg] ePsf]n] lgs} pT;flxt ePsf] kfO{Psf] 5  . ATM nfO{ Human ATM 
;d]t eGg] ul/Psf] 5  . ATM eGg] lalQs} xfd|f] ;dfhdf k};f /x]sf] d]l;g a'em\g] ul/Psf]n] Human ATM 
n] ;d]t k};fsf] g} sf/f]jf/ ug]{ ePsf]n] ;d'bfodf ;d]t of] ;]jf lgs} k|efjsf/L ePsf] dx;'; ePsf] 5  . 
o;n] gub /lxt s]Gb| a}7s ;+rfngdf ;d]t ;xof]u k'u]sf] 5  . 

	 -@_	gub /lxt sf/f]jf/M
	 gub /lxt a}lsË ;]jfsf] ljsf; / k|a4{gsf nflu 

ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;Dk"0f{ ;b:ox?nfO{ l8lh6n sf/f]af/ 
tkm{ pTk|]l/t ub}{ u|fld0f If]qdf ;/n / ;xh 
9+un] ljQLo ;]jf lj:tf/ ug{ 6f]n6f]ndf clws[t 
6]n/ ;b:o -ATM_ v8f u/]sf] 5 . s]Gb| a}7sdf 
sd{rf/Ln] c;'nL ubf{ ;+sng ePsf] nfvf} /sd 
af]sL sfof{no;Dd cfpFbf x'g ;Sg] hf]lvdnfO{ 
Go'lgs/0f ug{df gub /lxt sf/f]af/sf] dxTjk"0f{ 
e'ldsf /x]sf] 5 . cfhsf] o'u l8lh6n tkm{ pGd'v 
/x]sf]n] gub af]Sg] emGem6af6 5'6sf/fsf] nflu 
ægub /lxt sf/f]af/Æ sf] gf/f ;lxt of] ;]jf 
;+rfng ul/Psf] 5 . gub /lxt s]Gb| a}7s ;+rfng 
ubf{ ;b:o tyf sd{rf/LnfO{ ;dosf] art x'g] u/]sf] 5 . gub /lxt sf/f]jf/sf] nflu ljQLo ;+:yfåf/f k|jl4{t 
df]afO{n a}+lsË PlKns]zg -JBLBSL Smart Banking_ dfkm{t ljleGg dr]{G6 ;]jfx? e'QmfgL ug{ ;Ifd ePsf 
5g\ . ljQLo ;+:yfn] gub /lxt sf/f]jf/ cGtu{t k|bfg ul//x]sf] ;]jfx? lgDgfg';f/ /x]sf 5g\ . 

	 cf=j=@)*!÷*@ ;Dd l8lh6n ;]jf dfkm{t tk;Ln cg';f/sf] ;]jf k|bfg ul/Psf] 5M–

qm=;+= l8lh6n ;]jf @)*@ c;f/;Dd @)*! c;f/;Dd
! Pl6Pd ;+Vof 275 207
@ :df6{ ;b:o ;+Vof -hLjg ljsf; Pk k|of]ustf{_ 1,41,414 1,26,078
# l8lh6n ;b:o ;+Vof -df]afO{n a}+lsË k|of]ustf{_ 2,10,885 1,99,544
$ P;PdP; cn6{ ;]jf lnPsf ;b:o ;+Vof 1,32,208 99,111
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	 -u_	 ljljw
	 -!_	 tLgz'Go Snj M
	 k[YjLdf b]lvPsf] hl6n ;d:ofnfO{ nlIft u/L k|f]=df]xdb o'g';n] NofPsf] tLg z'Gosf] cjwf/0ff -z'Go ul/aL, z'Go 

a]/f]huf/L / z'Go v'b sfj{g pT;h{g_ k|fKtLsf nflu o'jf ju{sf] g]t[Tjbflo e'ldsf clgjfo{ x'G5 . o'jfx?df /x]sf] 
gljgtd ;f]r, zlQm / 1fgsf] ;b'kof]u u/L ;Dk'0f{ dfgjhflt / k[YjLsf] /Iff tkm{ cu|;/ u/fpg] p2]Zon] ljZjJofkL 
?kdf o'jfx?nfO{ ;+u7Lt ug{ tLgz'Go Snj u7g eO/x]sf 5g\ . g]kfndf tLgz'Go Snj u7g tyf kl/rfngdf o; 
ljQLo ;+:yfn] cu|0fL e'ldsf lgjf{x ub}{ cf=a=@)*!÷*@ ;Dddf !,$&% Snj u7g u/]sf] 5 . tLgz'Go Snjx?n] 
:yfgLo :t/df b]lvPsf ;d:ofx?nfO{ ;dfwfg ug{ cfkm}+ hfu?s eO ljleGg ;/f]sf/jfnf lgsfo -:yfgLo ;/sf/, 
ljleGg Snjx?, NGO, INGO_ ;Fu ;dGjo / ;xsfo{ u/L sfo{ ul//x]sf 5g\ .

S .N . Particular No . of Club S .N . Particular No . of Club

1 Environment and Climate Change 803 11 Waste Management 4

2 Zero Poverty 268 12 Art, Culture & Music 3

3 Zero Unemployment 312 13 Food & Nutrition 2

4 Education 25 14 Forestry 2

5 Sports 14 15 Energy 1

6 Agriculture 12 16 Journalism 1

7 Entrepreneurship 9 17 Literature 1

8 Social Fiction 8 18 People with Disabilities 1

9 Health & Wellbeing 4 19 Technology & Innovation 1

10 Social Business 4

	 -@_ 	 :jf:Yo ;]jfx?M–
	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfdf cfj4 ;b:o, sd{rf/Lx? / pgLx?sf kl/jf/nfO{ ;'ne / e/kbf]{ :jf:Yo ;]jf k|bfg ug{sf 

nflu hLjg ljsf; ;fd'bflos c:ktfndf :jf:Yo ;]jf ;DaGwL ;xsfo{ ul/Psf] 5 . o; ;xsfo{ cg';f/ 
o; ;+:yfdf cfj4 ;b:o, sd{rf/L tyf pgLx?sf kl/jf/sf ;b:ox?sf] pkrf/df #) b]lv $) k|ltzt;Dd 
;x'lnotsf] Aoj:yf ul/Psf] 5 eg] clt ljkGgx?nfO{ lgz'Ns ;d]t :jf:Yo ;]jf lbb} cfPsf] 5 . ;fy} cfkm\gf] 

sfo{If]q leq ;d'bfonfO{ ;d]t nfe x'g] ljleGg lsl;dsf :jf:Yo lzlj/x? ;d]t ;+rfng ul/Psf] 5 . 
cf=j=@)*!÷*@ ;Dd ul/Psf :jf:Yo lzlj/x? o; k|sf/ /x]sf 5g\ .
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ljj/0f
lzlj/ -cfFvf, 
a[xt :jf:Yo_

lzlj/df nfe 
lnPsf ;+Vof

zNolqmof -cfFvf 
tyf cGo_

lj/fdL ;]jf  -hLjg 
ljsf; klAns x]Ny ;]G6/_

@)*)÷*! ;Dd 242 35,929 4,300 45,739

@)*!÷*@ ;Dd 298 46,840 4,679 46,037

	 -#_ 	cfsl:ds /fxtM–
	 dflg;sf] hGd b]lv d[To';Dd cfO{kg]{ ljleGg lsl;dsf cfsl:ds 36gfx?df s]xL /fxt k'uf];\ eGg] x]t'n] cfsl:ds /fxt 

:j?k ljQLo ;+:yfdf cfj4 ;b:ox?sf] tflnd k|fKt :jf:YosdL{sf] k|ToIf lgu/fgLdf jf c:ktfndf aRrf hGdbf bf]>f] 
;Gtfg ;Ddsf] nflu gub ;xof]u ;fy} gjhft lzz'nfO{ Gofgf] sk8f tyf cfdfsf] nflu kf}li6s cfxf/ ljt/0f ug{] ul/G5 . 
o;sf ;fy} ;b:o tyf ;b:osf] cleefjssf] d[To' x'Fbf ;d]t sfhlqmof vr{ nufot ljleGg lsl;dsf ;xof]u ub}{ cfO{/x]sf] 
5 . cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ df o; ;+:yfn] cfsl:ds /fxt :j?k k|bfg u/]sf] ;xof]u lgDg cg';f/ /x]sf] 5 M–  

qm=; ljj/0f ;+Vof /sd ?=
1 ;b:osf] leqL ck/]zg 1,207 24,14,000

2 ;b:o ;'Ts]/L -;fdfGo_ 1,067 10,67,000

3 ;b:o ;'Ts]/L -ck/]zg_ 1,065 21,30,000

4 kf}li6s cfxf/ ljt/0f 1,772 17,25,617 

5 s's'/ jf h+unL hgfj/n] 6f]s]sf] 181 1,81,000

6 ;k{n] 6f]s]sf] 59 59,000

7 ;dj]bgf 1,405 11,43,830

8 &) aif{ eGbf a9L pd]/sf] ;b:osf] d[To' 45 2,25,000

9 &) aif{ eGbf a9L pd]/sf] ;b:osf] >Ldfg\sf] d[To' 154 7,70,000

-!#_ Progress Out of Poverty Index (PPI)
	 kL=kL=cfO{ ul/aLsf] :t/ dfkg ug]{ ljZjJofkL pks/0f xf] . kL=kL=cfO{= df 3/ kl/jf/sf] hLjg:t/sf] cfwf/df 

kl/jf/sf] ul/aLsf] :t/ dfkg ug]{ sfd ub{5 . kl/jf/ ;+Vof, 3/sf] cj:yf, ;fdflhs cj:yf / ;DklQsf] 
:jfldTjsf] af/]df @( k|Zgx¿sf] pQ/sf] cfwf/df ;f] kl/jf/ ul/aLsf] s'g :t/df /x]sf] eGg] dfkg ub{5 . 
kL=kL=cfO{sf] dfWodaf6 ;+:yfx?n] cfkm\gf ;b:ox¿sf] ul/aLsf] :t/ klxrfg ug{ ;S5g\ . 

	 g]kfndf ul/aLsf] :t/ dfkg ug]{ e/kbf]{ dfWodx? g/x]sf] / o;sf] ;j]{If0fdf ;do / nfut a9L nfUg] ePsf]n] 
ul/aL Go"lgs/0fsf] If]qdf sfd ug]{ ;+3 ;+:yfx?n] o;nfO{ Pp6f hl6n sfdsf] ?kdf lnO{Psf] kfO{G5 . o; ljQLo 
;+:yfn] cfly{s aif{ @)&%÷)&^ b]lv g} cfkm\gf ;b:ox?sf] kL=kL=cfO{= ug]{ sfdsf] z'?jft u/]sf] 5 . k|To]s @ jif{df 
kL=kL=cfO{=sf]] cfwf/df ;b:ox?sf] ul/aLsf] :t/ 5'6\ofO{ ;b:o k|utL sf8{ (Member Growth Card) ;d]t hf/L ug{]5 
eg] gofF cfj4 ePsf ;b:ox?sf] z'?b]lv g} kL=kL=cfO{=cBfjlws ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 . hLjg ljsf;df cfj4 ;b:ox?sf] 
kL=kL=cfO{sf] cj:yf cf=j=@)*@÷*# sflt{s ;Dd lgDgfg';f/sf] /x]sf] 5 . 	

	 ul/aLsf] :t/ (Poverty Level)
Year-Month Food National 100% $1 .25 PPP

2081- Kartik 0 .49 5 .03 6 .25

2082- Kartik 0 .48 4 .97 6 .18

	 lgisif{ 
	 Economic Survey 2022/2023 sf] k|ltj]bg cg';f/ g]kfndf ul/aLsf] /]vfd'gL /x]sf] hg;+Vof !%=!Ü /x]sf] 

b]vfPsf] 5 . o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;+:yfdf cfj4 ;b:ox?sf] ul/aLsf] :t/ PPI Tool dfkm{t dfkg ubf{ @)*@ 
sflt{s d;fGtsf] cj:yf / @)*! sflt{ssf] t'ngf ubf{ National Food Poverty cGtu{t )=$(Ü af6 )=$* Ü df 
cfPsf], National 100% cGtu{t %=)#Ü af6 $=(&Ü df cfPsf] / International $1 .25PPP cGtu{t ^=@%Ü 
af6 ̂ =!*Ü df ul/aL :t/ /x]sf] kfO{Psf] 5 . o;/L x]bf{ ljut Ps jif{df o; ljQLo ;+:yfdf cfj4 ;b:ox?sf] 
ul/aLsf] :t/df qmlds ?kdf ;'wf/ cfPsf] :ki6 b]Vg ;lsG5 .
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-!$_ ;+:yfut ;'zf;g M
	 ljQLo ;+:yfdf ;+:yfut ;'zf;g sfod /fVg Joj:yfkg / ;~rfns ;ldlt ;b}j k|ltj4 /x]sf] 5 . ;~rfns ;ldltsf 

;b:ox? tyf sd{rf/Lx?n] g]kfn /fi6« j}+s tyf lgodgsf/L lgsfon] hf/L u/]sf lgb]{zg adf]lhdsf cfr/0fx? k'0f{ ?kdf 
kfng u/]sf 5g\ . ljQLo ;+:yfsf ;Dk"0f{ lqmofsnfk kf/bzL{ ?kdf ;+rfng u/L ;+:yfut ;'zf;gsf] ljsf; ul/Psf] 5 . 
Joj:yfksLo lg0f{o / sfd sf/jfxLdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] s'g} lsl;dsf] x:tIf]k g/x]sf] hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG5' .

-!%_   eflj sfo{qmd M
	y ljQLo kx'Fr lj:tf/sf nflu ;]jf gk'u]sf ;DefJo If]qsf] vf]hL ub{} cfjZostf cg';f/ gofF zfvf :yfkgf 

tyf dh{/÷PlSjlh;gsf] k|of; ul/g]5 .
	y n3'ljQ sfo{qmdsf] u'0f:t/ j[l4 ;lxt shf{, art tyf cGo ;]jfx¿nfO{ yk dof{lbt, ;]jfd'vL / bLuf] 

agfpFb} ;+:yfut 5lj tyf ;]jfu|fxLsf] ;Gt'li6 clej[l4df hf]8 lbOg]5 . shf{sf] u'0f:t/ ;'wf/sf nflu 
;b:ox?sf] cfjZostf / Ifdtfsf] klxrfg u/L k|ofKt nufgL Pj+ shf{ ;b'kof]u u/fpg hf]8 lbOg]5 .

	y ljQLo ;+:yfdf cfj4 C0f grnfPsf ;b:onfO{ C0fsf] pkof]u ug{ k|]l/t u/L df}lns pTkfbgdf hf]8 lbOg]5 .
	y ;b:ox?sf] cfly{s ;'lglZrttfsf] nflu ;do;fk]If tyf gjk|jt{go'Qm gofF art of]hgfx¿ nfu' ul/g]5 .
	y o'jf tyf ;b:ox¿nfO{ :j/f]huf/ / pBdzLntf dfkm{t /f]huf/L l;h{gftkm{ k|]l/t ug{ ;Lkd'ns tflnd, cWoog 

tyf cjnf]sg e|d0f, vf]h tyf cg';Gwfg sfo{qmd Pjd\ tflnd tyf cg';Gwfg s]G› ;~rfng ul/g]5 .
	y ;b:ox¿n] pTkfbg u/]sf j:t' tyf ;]jfsf] ahf/Ls/0fdf ;xhLs/0f ug{ xf6ahf/ k|j4{g, ;b:o–;b:oaLr 

Joj;flos ;xsfo{ k|j4{g tyf cfTdlge{/ Pj+ jftfj/0fd}qL ;d'bfo lgd{f0f ;DaGwL sfo{qmdx¿ ;~rfng ul/g]5 
	y gub /lxt sf/f]af/ cleofgnfO{ 6]jf k'¥ofpFb} u|fdL0f tyf ljkGg ju{;Dd l8lh6n ljQLo ;]jfsf] kx'Fr 

lj:tf/ ul/g]5 . ;fy}, ;+:yfut sfo{ ;~rfngnfO{ yk k|efjsf/L / pTkfbgzLn agfpg l8lh6fOh]zg 
tyf gljg k|of]ux? ul/g]5 .

	y ;b:ox¿sf] ;fdflhs–cfly{s cj:yfdf cfPsf] kl/jt{gsf] tYok/s d'NofÍg ug{ k|To]s b'O{ jif{df ;b:o 
:t/f]Gglt dfkg ug{sf nflu PPI (Progress out of Poverty Index) sf] k|of]u ul/g]5 .

	y ;+:yfdf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx¿sf] bIftf, Ifdtf tyf dgf]an clej[l4sf nflu lgoldt tflnd, Ifdtf ljsf; 
sfo{qmd, v]ns'b tyf of]u–Wofgh:tf :jf:Yo k|j4{g sfo{qmdx¿ ;~rfng ul/g]5 .

	y sfo{qmd u'0f:t/, ;+:yfut ;'zf;g, kf/blz{tf tyf hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ug{ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL tyf 
Joj:yfkg ;"rgf k|0ffnL (MIS) nfO{ yk ;'b[9 agfOg]5 .

	y ætLg z"GoÆ -z"Go ul/aL, z"Go a]/f]huf/L / z"Go v'b sfa{g pT;h{g_ cjwf/0ffnfO{ cfTd;ft\ ub{} y|Llh/f] 
Snj, jftfj/0f d}qL cfTdlge{/ ufpF (Eco-Village), cltljkGgnfO{ ;xof]u (Hardcore Poor Support), 
pBdzLntf ljsf; nufotsf lbuf] ljsf; nlIft sfo{qmdx¿ ;~rfng ul/g]5 .

cfef/ k|s6 M 
cfhsf] o; k'lgt cj;/df ljQLo ;+:yfdf cfa4 eO{ sf/f]af/ ug{] ;Dk"0f{ ;b:ox? k|lt xflb{s cfef/ JoQm ug{ 
rfxG5' . ;dod} n]vfk/LIf0f sfo{ ;DkGg u/L ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ cfjZos ;'emfjx? ;d]t lbg] jfXo n]vfk/LIfsnfO{ 
;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 xflb{s wGojfb lbGf rfxG5' . o; ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ ;kmn tyf kl/0ffdd'vL agfpg 
;xof]u ug'{x'g] z'elrGts, z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?df xflb{s wGojfb 1fkg ub{5' . lgofds lgsfo g]kfn /fi6«  
a+}s, sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, lwtf] kq af]8{, g]K;], l;l8P;, a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx?, ;/sf/L tyf u}/ ;/sf/L 
;+3;+:yf tyf kqsf/ aGw'x? nufot o; ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ k|ToIf Pj+ ck|ToIf ?kdf ;xof]u k'¥ofpg' x'g] ;Dk'0f{df 
o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] tkm{af6 xflb{s s[t1tf 1fkg ub{5' . cGTodf, ljz]if u/L z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?n] xfdL dfly 
bzf{pg' ePsf] ljZjf;, ;xof]u / ;b\efj k|lt d ;Dk'0f{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?nfO{ k'gM ;~rfns ;ldlt tyf ljQLo 
;+:yf kl/jf/sf] tkm{af6 xflb{s wGojfb 1fkg ug{ rfxG5' . ;fy}, sfo{qmdnfO{ hg:t/;Dd n}hfg k'nsf] ?kdf 
/xL sfd ug{'x'g] ;Dk'0f{ sd{rf/Lx?, clws[t 6]n/ ;b:ox? -ATM_ tyf s]Gb| k|d'vx?sf] cg'zf;g, nuglzntf 
/ OdfGbf/Ltfsf] k'gM :d/0f / k|z+;f ub{5' . o; ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ ;jf]{Ts[i6 agfpgsf] nflu ljutdf em}+ cfpFbf 
lbgx?df klg oxfFx? ;a} z'elrGtsx?af6 cd'No ;Nnfx ;'emfj tyf z'e]R5fsf] ck]Iff ub}{, cfpFbf lbgx?nfO{ cem 
pknlAwd'ns agfpg] k|0f ;lxt pkl:yt ;Dk'0f{ dxfg'efjx?nfO{ xflb{s wGojfb 1fkg ub{5' .
									         wGojfb .
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;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf v'nfpg' kg]{
sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !)( -$_ ;+u ;DalGwt cGo yk ljj/0fx?

-s_	 ;ldIff jif{sf] sf/f]jf/sf] l;+xfjnf]sg M
	 ;~rfns k|ltj]bgdf /x]sf] 5  .
-v_	/fli6«o tyf cGt/f{li6«o kl/l:yltaf6 sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/nfO{ s'g} c;/ k/] gk/]sf] M
	 ljZjJofkL ?kdf b]lvPsf] cfly{s dGbLsf] k|efjn] sfo{qmddf lgs} c;/ kf/]sf] 5  . o;n] ;b:ox?sf] Jofkf/ Joj;fodf 

;d]t c;/ k'u]sf] 5  . To:t} a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx? lj?4 b]lvPsf] unt k|j[lQ tyf k|rf/afhLn] ;d]t sfo{qmddf 
c;/ kf/]sf] 5  . o;n] ubf{ ;b:ox? dgf]a}1flgs ?kdf tgfasf] cj:yfdf /x]sf]n] ;+:yfsf] ls:tf c;'nLdf o;n] 
k|efj kf/]sf] b]lvG5  . 

-u_	 k|ltj]bg tof/ ul/Psf] ldlt;Dd rfn' jif{ -cf=j= @)*@÷*#_ sf] pknlAw / eljiodf ug'{kg]{ s'/fx?sf 
ljifodf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] wf/0ff M

	 of] k|ltj]bg tof/ ubf{;Ddsf] ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cfly{s l:ytLsf] emns ut jif{sf] t'ngfdf lgDg cg';f/ /x]sf] 5  .

ljj/0f
@)*@ c;f/  
d;fGt;Ddsf]

@)*@ d+l;/  
d;fGt;Ddsf]

;b:o ;+Vof 367,423 369,701
s'n jrt tyf lgIf]k -?=xhf/df_ 12,414,843 13,006,908
s'n nufgLdf /x]sf] shf{ tyf ;fk6 -?= xhf/df_ 28,883,993 29,297,827
s'n Jofh tyf cGo cfDbfgL -?= xhf/df_ 4,345,107 1,820,366
s'n vr{ -?= xhf/df_ 3,096,605 2,218,312
;+rfng Gffkmf -?= xhf/df_ 990,582 285,734
v'b d'gfkmf -?= xhf/df_ 706,429 75,327

	 Dffly pNn]v ul/P cg';f/sf] lzif{sdf ut jif{ / rfn' jif{sf] o;} cjlwdf ljQLo ;+:yfn] xfl;n u/]sf] k|utL ;sf/fTds /x]sf]n] 
;~rfns ;ldltsf] wf/0ff ;Gtf]ifhgs /x]sf] 5 .

-3_	 sDkgLsf] cf}Bf]lus jf Joj;flos ;DaGw M
	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] sf/f]jf/ ug]{ lznl;nfdf ;Dj4 ;a} If]qx?;Fu ;f}xfb{k"0f{ ;DaGw /xFb} cfPsf] 5  . ljQLo ;+:yfn] 

:yflkt u/]sf g}lts d"No dfGotfnfO{ cfwf/ dfGb} cufl8 a9]sfn] o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] Joj:yfkg / sd{rf/Lx? ljrsf] 
;DaGw ;'dw'/ /x]sf] 5 . ;fy} ;do ;dodf ;DalGwt P]g sfg"g tyf lgodgsf/L lgsfox?af6 k|fKt x'g] lgb]{zgx?sf] 
kfngfaf6 ;:+yf emg\ alnof] x+'b} uO{/x]sf] 5  . cfufdL lbgdf ;d]t ;+:yfut ;'zf;g Pj+ Joj;flos ;DaGw lj:tf/df ljQLo 
;+:yf k|lta4 /x]sf] s'/f oxfFx? ;dIf /fVg rfxG5'  .

-ª_ 	;~rfns ;ldltdf ePsf] x]/km]/ / ;f] sf] sf/0f M
	 cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldltdf :jtGq ;~rfnssf] sfo{cjlw ;dfKt ePsf]n] x]/km]/ ePsf] 5 .
	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] jt{dfg ;~rfns ;ldltsf] ;+/rgf lgDg jdf]lhd /x]sf] 5 M

qm=;+= gfd kb k|ltlglwTj
! laqmd /fh ;'j]bL cWoIf ;+:yfks z]o/wgL -hLjg ljsf; ;dfh_
@ ZofdrGb| vltj8f ;~rfns ;+:yfks z]o/wgL
# O{Gb| gf/fo0f b]j j}Zo ;~rfns ;+:yfks z]o/wgL
$ k|sfz s'df/ >]i7 ;~rfns ;+:yfks z]o/wgL
% uf]s0f{ vltj8f ;~rfns ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgL
^ czf]s l;6f}nf ;~rfns ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgL
& 8f=aGbgf s'df/L h}g ;~rfns :jtGq ;~rfns

-r_	 sf/f]af/nfO{ c;/ kfg]{ d'Vo s'/fx?M
	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] sf/f]jf/nfO{ d'Vo u/L lgDg lnlvt s'/fx?n] c;/ kfg{] b]lvG5  . o:tf] c;/x?af6 ar]/ ljQLo 

;+:yfnfO{ k|efjsf/L 9+uaf6 cufl8 a9fpg xfdL k|oTglzn 5f}+  .
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•	 df}lb|s tyf ljQLo gLlt nufot ck|Toflzt ?kdf x'g] gLltut kl/j{tg Pj+ lgb]{zgaf6 ;d:of >[hgf x'g ;Sg] 
b]lvG5 .

•	 cf=j=@)*!÷*@ df klg ljZjJofkL ?kdf b]lvPsf] cfly{s dGbLsf] sf/0fn] sf/f]jf/nfO{ cTolws k|efj kf/]sf] 5 
/ cfufdL lbgdf klg c;/ kfg{ ;Sg] ;+efjgf /x]sf] 5 .

•	 s]xL pT>[+vn JolQmx? tyf ;d'xn] lglxt :jfy{ /fvL C0f ldgfxfsf] e|d km}nfpg], ;d'bfonfO{ efF8\g], ljQLo 
cg'zf;g sdhf]/ agfpg], ls:tf ltg{ vf]Hg]nfO{ ;d]t cj/f]w ug]{, gf/f h'n'; ug]{ sfo{n] ;d]t sfo{qmddf c;/ 
kf/]sf] 5 .

•	 k|ljlwsf] k|of]u ;Fu} Digital Fraud, Cyber Threat n] ;+:yf tyf ;b:ox?n] u/]sf] l8lh6n sf/f]af/nfO{ r'gf}tL 
x'g;Sg] ;+efjgf b]lvG5 .

•	 /fhg}lts cl:y/tfn] ubf{ b]zdf x'g;Sg] aGb x8\tfn nufotsf ultljlwaf6 n3'ljQ sfo{qmd k|efljt x'g;Sg] 
;+efjgf b]lvG5 .

•	 ljutdf g} clws C0fsf] ef/df k/]sf tyf gub k|jfxdf x|f; cfPsf sf/0f shf{sf] lgoldt ls:tf e'QmfgL gx'Fbf 
ljQLo ;+:yfsf] sf/f]af/df c;/ kf/]sf] 5 .

-5_ 	n]vfk/LIfs k|ltj]bgdf s'g} s}lkmot pNn]v ePsf] eP ;f] pk/ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|lts[of M 
	 cf=j=@)*!÷*@ df lgo'Qm x'g' ePsf n]vfk/LIfs >L P=a+zn P08 P;f]l;P6\; -rf6{8{ Psf06]G6 >L cZjgL a+zn_ Nf] 

n]vfk/LIf0f ug'{ ePsf] 5 . o; k|ltj]bgsf ;fy ;+nUg n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg / n]vf ljj/0fx?n] ljQLo ;+:yfsf] oyfy{ l:ytLsf] 
lrq0f u/]sf] 5 . n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bgdfly ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 s'g} pNn]Vo l6Kk0fL /x]sf] 5}g .

-h_ 	nfef+z af“8kmf“8 ug{ l;kmfl/; ul/Psf] /sd M
	 cf=j= @)*!÷*@ sf] d'gfkmfaf6 z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?nfO{ @)*@ c;f/ d;fGtdf sfod r'Qmf k"FhL ?=! ca{ %# s/f]8 

^! nfv &! xhf/ % ;o $^ sf] !$ k|ltztn] x'g cfpg] /sd ?=@! s/f]8 %) nfv ^$ xhf/ !^ ?k}of af]g; z]o/ 
/ )=&#^* k|ltztn] x'g cfpg] /sd ?= ! s/f]8 !# nfv !( xhf/ ! ;o ^! ?k}of -gub nfef+; / ;f]df nfUg] s/ 
;d]t_ nfef+z afF8kmfF8 ug]{ k|:tfj o; ;fwf/0f ;ef ;dIf :jLs[tLsf nfuL k]z ul/Psf] 5 .

-em_ z]o/ hkmt ePsf] eP hkmt ePsf] z]o/ ;+Vof, To:tf] z]o/sf] cl°t d"No, To:tf] z]o/ hkmt x'g' eGbf  
cufj} ;f] afkt sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] hDdf /sd / To:tf] z]o/ hkmt ePkl5 ;f] z]o/ laqmL u/L sDkgLn] 
k|fKt u/]sf] /sd tyf hkmt ePsf] z]o/ jfkt /sd lkmtf{ u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0fM
•	 cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ df s'g} lsl;dsf] z]o/x? hkmt ug]{ sfo{ gePsf]  .

-`_ ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL / o;sf] ;xfos sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/sf] k|ult / ;f] cfly{s jif{sf] cGtdf /x]sf]  
l:yltsf] k'g/fjnf]sgM
•	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;xfos sDkgL gePsf]  .

-6_ sDkgL tyf To;sf] ;xfos sDkgLn] cfly{s jif{df ;DkGg u/]sf] k|d'v sf/f]jf/x? / ;f] cjlwdf 
sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/df cfPsf] s'g} dxTjk"0f{ kl/j{tg M 
•	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;xfos sDkgL gePsf]  .

-7_ ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf] cfwf/e"t z]o/wgLx?n] sDkgLnfO{ pknAw u/fPsf] hfgsf/L M
• 	 ljut cfly{s jif{df cfwf/e't z]o/wgLx?af6 ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ 5'§} ?kdf s'g} hfgsf/L k|fKt ePsf] 5}g  .

-8_ 	ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx?n] lnPsf] z]o/sf] :jfldTjsf] ljj/0f 
/ sDkgLsf] z]o/ sf/f]af/df lghx? ;+nUg /x]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwdf lghx?af6 sDkgLn] k|fKt  
u/]sf] hfgsf/L M 

	 s=		 ;~rfns ;ldlt kbflwsf/L M

qm=;+= gfd kb k|ltlglwTj z]o/ :jfldTj lsQf k|ltzt
! laqmd /fh ;'j]bL cWoIf hLjg ljsf; ;dfh 0 0 .00

@ ZofdrGb| vltj8f ;~rfns ;+:yfks z]o/wgL 1,19,934 0 .78
# k|sfz s'df/ >]i7 ;~rfns ;+:yfks z]o/wgL 12,952 0 .08
$ O{Gb| gf/fo0f b]j j}Zo ;~rfns ;+:yfks z]o/wgL 1,26,246 0 .82
% uf]s0f{ vltj8f ;~rfns ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgL 1,737 0 .01
^ czf]s l;6f}nf ;~rfns ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgL 277 0 .00
& 8f=aGbgf s'df/L h}g ;~rfns :jtGq ;~rfns 0 0 .00
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	 v=		 Joj:yfkg kbflwsf/L M

qm=;+= sd{rf/Lsf] gfd xfnsf] kb z]o/ :jfldTj lsQf k|ltzt
! ;+ho s'df/ d08n k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t 68,552 0 .45
@ bfdf]b/ /]UdL gfoa k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t 82,060 0 .53
# laho s'df/ d08n al/i7 k|aGws 361 0 .00
$ ;'lbk s'df/ d08n al/i7 k|aGws 0 0 .00
% dgf]h s'df/ ;fx k|aGws 222 0 .00
^ lagf]b k|;fb ;fx k|aGws 56,811 0 .37
& /d]z /fo k|aGws 43,302 0 .28
* c+ho s'df/ d08n k|aGws 114 0 .00
( /fdgf/fo0f ofbj k|aGws 11,362 0 .07
!) ;fljqL b]jL >]i7 k|aGws 8,635 0 .06
!! /Ghgf lg/f}nf al/i7 clws[t 139 0 .00
!@ dgf]h s'df/ zdf{ al/i7 clws[t 199 0 .00
!# s'df]b s'df/ d08n al/i7 clws[t 178 0 .00
!$ lzj s'df/ /fd al/i7 clws[t 199 0 .00

	 Joj:yfkg l6dsf jl/i7 k|aGws >L ljho s'df/ d08n afx]s ljQLo ;+:yfsf ;~rfns Pj+ cGo Joj:yfkg 
kbflwsf/Lx?n] ljQLo ;+:yfaf6 lgisfzg ul/Psf] z]o/ v/Lb ug]{ / ;fwf/0f ;efaf6 kfl/t nfef+z u|x0f ug]{ afx]s 
z]o/ sf/f]jf/df cGo s'g} ;+nUgtf gePsf] . 

-9_	 ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL;+u s'g} ;~rfns tyf lghsf] glhssf] gft]bf/sf] JolQmut :jfy{sf] af/]df 
pknAw u/fOPsf] hfgsf/Lsf] Joxf]/f M
•	 	 ljut cfly{s jif{df o; ljQLo ;+:yf;+u ;DalGwt ;Demf}tfx?df o; sDkgLsf s'g} ;~rfns tyf lghsf 

glhssf] gft]bf/sf] JolQmut :jfy{ g/x]sf]  .

-0f_ sDkgLn] cfkm\gf] z]o/ cfkm}n] vl/b u/] gu/]sf], ug'{sf] sf/0f, To:tf] z]o/sf] ;+Vof / cl°t d"NoM ;ldIff 
jif{df ljQLo ;+:yfn] cfkm\gf] z]o/ cfkm} vl/b u/]sf] 5}g  .

-t_ 	cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL / ;f]sf] lj:t[t ljj/0f M
	 ljQLo ;+:yfdf ;'zf;g sfod u/L :jrflnt 9+un] ;+rfng ug{ ljleGg cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL cjnDag ul/Psf] 

5   . To;sf nflu lgoldt cg'udg, q}dfl;s cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f, lhNnf sfof{no dfkm{t Close Monitoring, 
k|zf;lgs lgoGq0f, sDKo"6/s[t tyf l8lh6n clen]v k|0ffnL, dfl;s ?kdf sd{rf/Lsf] :j–d"Nof+sgsf] Joj:yfsf 
;fy} x/]s ljifodf dfl;s nIo sfod ul/ jflif{s of]hgf tyf sfo{qmdsf] Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5  . To;}u/L ljQLo ;+:yf 
;+rfngsf] nflu cfjZos ljleGg ljlgod tyf lgb]{lzsfx? Tfof/ ug{], cfjZostfg';f/ kl/dfh{g ug{] / ;f]xL cg'?k 
sfo{ ;+rfng ug{] ul/Psf] 5  .

	 -!_		 sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf ;ldlt M o; ljQLo ;:+yfsf] sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf ;ldltdf u}/ sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L 
k|sfz s'df/ >]i7 Ho'sf] ;+of]hsTjdf k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t >L ;+ho s'df/ d08n, dfgj ;:+ffwg ljefu k|d'v 
;'lbk s'df/ d08n ;b:o ;lrj / n]vf ljefu k|d'v c+ho s'df/ d08n ;b:o /xg' ePsf] 5 . o; ;ldltsf] a}7s 
cfjZostf cg';f/ j:g] u/]sf] 5 . o; ;ldltn] ljQLo ;+:yfsf sd{rf/Lx?sf] kfl/>lds lgwf{/0f gLlt th'{df ug{ 
;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ ;xof]u ug]{ tyf kfl/>lds lgwf{/0f gLlt jdf]lhd k|rlnt sfg"g tyf gLlt lgb]{zgdf plNnlvt 
Joj:yfx?sf] kfngf x'g] u/L ;Dk"0f{ sd{rf/Lx?sf] kfl/>lds j[l4 ug'{kg]{ b]lvPdf ;f]sf] cfwf/x? ;lxt ;~rfns 
;ldltdf l;kmfl/; ug]{, hgzlQm Joj:yfkg ;DjGwL sfo{x? egf{, 5gf}6, lgo'QmL, kb:yfkg, ;?jf, j9'jf cflbsf] 
dfkb08x? tof/ ul/ ;~rfns ;ldlt ;dIf k]z ug]{ tyf g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 o; ;ldltn] ug]{ elg tf]lsPsf sfo{x? 
ug]{ ub{5 .
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	 -@_ 	 hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt M o; ljQLo ;:+yfsf] hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldltdf u}/ sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L O{Gb| 
gf/fo0f b]j j}Zo Ho'sf] ;+of]hsTjdf ;~rfns >L czf]s l;6f}nf / n3'ljQ ljefu k|d'v >L dgf]h s'df/ ;fx ;b:o 
/ hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ljefu k|d'v >L lzj s'df/ /fd ;b:o ;lrj /xg' ePsf] 5 . o; ;ldltsf] a}7s tLg dlxgfdf 
sDtLdf Ps k6s j:g] u/]sf] 5 . o; ;ldltn] ljBdfg hf]lvd klxrfg tyf Joj:yfkg k|0ffnLsf] kof{Kttf / pko'Qmtf 
;DjGwdf ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ hfgsf/L u/fpg] / pko'Qm k|0ffnLsf] ljsf;sf] nflu ;'emfj lbg], Joj;flos ultljlwdf 
lglxt hf]lvdsf] :t/, hf]lvd jxg Ifdtf, hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf] nflu ljsf; u/]sf] /0fgLlt cflbsf] ;DjGwdf ;~rfns 
;ldltdf ;'emfj k]z ug]{, hf]lvd ;DklQ cg';f/ k"FhLsf] kof{Kttf, t/ntfsf] l:ylt, Jofhb/ kl/jt{gjf6 kg{ ;Sg] 
hf]lvd, tyf cGo hf]lvdx?sf] lgoldt ?kdf 5nkmn tyf ljZn]if0f ul/ ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ cfjZos /fo tyf ;'emfj 
lbg] tyf g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 o; ;ldltn] ug]{ elg tf]lsPsf sfo{x? ug]{ ub{5 .

	 -#_ 	 ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f cg'udg ;ldltM o; ljQLo ;:+yfsf] ;DkQL z'4Ls/0f cg'udg ;ldltdf u}/ sfo{sf/L 
;~rfns >L Zofd rGb| vltj8f Ho'sf] ;+of]hsTjdf k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t >L ;+ho s'df/ d08n ;b:o, n3'ljQ 
ljefu k|d'v >L dgf]h s'df/ ;fx / Joj:yfkg ;"rgf k|0ffnL ljefusf ljefuLo k|d'v >L s'df]b s'df/ d08n ;b:o 
;lrj /xg' ePsf] 5 . o; ;ldltsf] a}7s # dlxgfdf sDtLdf ! k6s j:g] u/]sf] 5 . o; ;ldltn] ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f 
;DjlGw cg'udg ug]{ tyf g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 o; ;ldltn] ug]{ elg tf]lsPsf sfo{x? ug]{ ub{5 .

	 -$_		 n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt / ;f] ;ldltn] u/]sf sfd sf/jfxLsf] ljj/0f M
	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltdf u}/ sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L czf]s l;6f}nfHo'sf] ;+of]hsTjdf ;~rfns 

8f=aGbgf s'df/L h}g ;b:o / n]vf k/LIf0f ljefusf k|d'v >L lagf]b k|;fb ;fx ;b:o ;lrj /xg' ePsf] 5 . 
zfvfx?sf] q}dfl;s÷cw{jflif{s ?kdf n]vfk/LIf0f sfo{ ;DkGg u/L n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg ;ldltsf ;+of]hsnfO{ a'emfpg] 
ub{5 / o; ;ldltsf] a}7s # dlxgfdf sDtLdf ! k6s j:g] / pQm k|ltj]bgdf b]lvPsf] s}lkmotx?sf] af/]df 5nkmn 
u/L ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ ;'emfj lbg] ub{5 . o;/L ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s lgoGq0fsf] k|efjsfl/tf clej[l4 ug{ 
cfGtl/s gLlt lgod Pj+ g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 hf/L lgb]{zg tyf cGo k|rlnt Joj:yf adf]lhd sfdx? eP gePsf] x]/L 
n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltn] ;'wf/fTds sf/jfxLsf] nflu Joj:yfkgnfO{ lgb]{zg lbg] tyf ;~rfns ;ldlt ;dIf ;'emfj k]z 
ug]{ ub{5 .

-y_	 ut cfly{s jif{sf] s"n Joj:yfkg vr{sf] ljj/0f M
	 cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ df o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s'n Joj:yfkg vr{ lgDg adf]lhd ?=! ca{ !@ s/f]8 ^^ nfv *$ 

xhf/ *$ ?k}of dfq /x]sf] 5 .
	 -s_ sd{rf/L vr{ ?= ((,$@,!),(!#.–
	 -v_ sfof{no ;+rfng vr{ ?=!#,@$,&#,!@!.–

-b_	 n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf ;b:ox?sf] gfdfjnL, lghx?n] k|fKt u/]sf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwf / ;f] 
;ldltn] u/]sf sfd sf/jfxLsf] ljj/0f / ;f] ;ldltn] s'g} ;'emfj lbPsf] eP ;f] sf] ljj/0f M

	 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltdf u}/ sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L czf]s l;6f}nfHo'sf] ;+of]hsTjdf ;~rfns >L 
aGbgf s'df/L h}g ;b:o / n]vf k/LIf0f ljefusf k|d'v >L lagf]b k|;fb ;fx ;b:o ;lrj /xg' ePsf] 5 . n]vfk/LIf0f 
;ldltsf] ;+of]hs -u}/ sfo{sf/L ;~rfns_ sf] eQf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s eQf a/fa/ ? &,))) tyf cGo 
kbflwsf/Lx?sf] a}7s eQf ? @,%)) /x]sf] 5 . o; ;ldltn] n]vfk/LIfs lgo'QmLsf] l;kmfl/; ug]{, cfGtl/s tyf afXo 
n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf b]lvPsf] s}lkmotx?sf] af/]df 5nkmn u/L ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s lgoGq0fsf] k|efjsfl/tf 
clej[l4 ug{ cfGtl/s gLlt lgod Pj+ g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 hf/L lgb]{zg tyf cGo k|rlnt Joj:yf adf]lhd sfdx? eP 
gePsf] x]/L n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltn] ;'wf/fTds sf/jfxLsf] nflu Joj:yfkgnfO{ lgb]{zg lbg] tyf ;~rfns ;ldlt ;dIf 
;'emfj k]z ug]{ u/]sf] 5 .

-w_ 	;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v, sDkgLsf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf lghsf] glhssf gft]bf/ jf lgh ;+nUg 
/x]sf] kmd{, sDkgL jf ;+ul7t ;+:yfn] sDkgLnfO{ s'g} /sd a'emfpg af“sL eP gePsf] M

	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v, sDkgLsf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf lghsf] glhssf gft]bf/ jf lgh ;+nUg 
/x]sf] kmd{, sDkgL jf ;+ul7t ;+:yfn] sDkgLnfO{ s'g} /sd a'emfpg afFsL /x]sf] 5}g  .
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-g_ 	;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v tyf kbflwsf/Lx?nfO{ e'QmfgL ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf 
;'ljwfsf] /sd M 

	 -c_	 ;~rfns ;ldlt;“u ;DjlGwt M
	 a}7s eQf 			   M cWoIf ?=*,))) .– / ;~rfns ?=&,))) .– k|lt j}7s
	 kqklqsf 			   M cWoIfnfO{ ?= !))) dfl;s / ;~rfnsnfO{ ?= !))) dfl;s
	 ;+rf/ vr{ 			   M cWoIfnfO{ ?= @))) dfl;s / ;~rfnsnfO{ ?= @))) dfl;s
	 :jb]z e|d0fdf b}lgs eQf			   M cWoIf Pj+ ;~rfnsnfO{ b}lgs ?=$,))) .– tyf jf:tljs nfu]sf] 			 

  					       oftfoft vr{ 
	 lab]z e|d0fdf b}lgs eQf 			  M cWoIf Pj+ ;~rfnsnfO{ ef/tsf nflu b}lgs ef? $,))) .– / cGo 			

				      d'n'ssf nflu !%) 8n/

	 -cf_	sfo{sf/L k|d'vnfO{ cf=j= @)*!÷*@ df e'QmfgL ePsf] kfl/>lds ;'ljwfx? M 

ljj/0f /sd ?=
tna 42,60,000
eQf 7,20,000
bz} eQf 3,55,000
s'n tna 53,35,000
v'b gub 35,28,535

	 -O_ 	 sfo{sf/L k|d'v / Joj:yfklso ÷k|jGws :t/sf sd{rf/L kbflwsf/Lx?nfO{ tnj eQfsf] ;fy} lgDg 
		    ;'ljwfx? lbO{Psf] 5  .

!= 	 af]g; ;DjGwdf M af]g; P]g cg';f/ .
@= 	 pkbfg ;DjGwdf M sd{rf/L ;]jf ljgLodfjnLdf Joj:yf u/] cg';f/ .
#= 	 k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tnfO{ jflif{s @) lbgsf] tnj tyf cGo Joj:yfklso÷k|jGwsnfO{ jflif{s ?=@),))).– 

b]lv ?=@%,))).– ;Ddsf] cf}ifwL pkrf/ vr{sf] Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5 . k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t tyf cGo 
Joj:yfklso÷k|jGwssf] jflif{s ?=& nfvsf] b'3{6gf jLdf ug]{ Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5 .

$= 	 ;+ro sf]ifM cfwf/ tnasf] !) k|ltzt .
%= 	 hLjg jLdfM k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t nufot ;Dk"0f{ sd{rf/LnfO{ hLjg jLdfsf] ;'ljwf k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 .
^= 	 k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tnfO{ jflif{s ?=#),))).– tyf cGo Joj:yfklso÷k|jGwsnfO{ jflif{s ?=!),))).–

kf]zfs vr{sf] Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5 .
-k_ 	z]o/wgLx?n] a'lemlng af“sL /x]sf] nfef+zsf] /sd M

•	 gePsf]  .
-km_	sDkgL P]gsf] bkmf !$! jdf]lhd ;DklQ vl/b jf ljqmL u/]sf] s'/fsf] ljj/0f M

•	 gePsf]  .
-a_ 	 sDkgL P]gsf] bkmf !&% jdf]lhd ;Dj4 sDkgL jLr ePsf] sf/f]jf/sf] ljj/0f M

•	 sDkgL P]gsf] bkmf !&% adf]lhd ;Dj4 sDkgL jLr ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cfkm\gf] lgoldt ljQLo sf/f]af/  
jfx]s cGo sf/f]jf/ ePsf] 5}g  .

-e_ 	sDkgL P]g tyf k|rlnt sfg"g adf]lhd ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf v'nfpg' kg]{ cGo s'/fx?M
•	 gePsf]  .

-d_ 	cGo cfjZos s'/fx? M
•	 gePsf]  .
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Figures in NPR

Particulars Note  As at 
32 Ashadh 2082 

 As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

Assets
Cash and Cash equivalents 4.1 1,916,125,633            1,445,656,419            
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 128,500,000               123,500,000               
Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions 4.3 40,000,000                 120,000,000               
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4 -                             -                             
Other Trading Assets 4.5 -                             -                             
Loans and Advance to MFIs & Cooperatives 4.6 -                             -                             
Loans and Advances to Customers 4.7 27,289,680,265          25,874,567,913          
Investment Securities 4.8 -                             -                             
Current Tax Assets 4.9 -                             76,568,677                 
Investment Property 4.10 -                             -                             
Property and Equipment 4.11 255,728,208               273,589,246               
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.12 471,534                      1,112,998                   
Deferred Tax Assets 4.13 341,027,313               239,287,533               
Other Assets 4.14 128,322,421               75,421,605                 
Total Assets 30,099,855,373          28,229,704,392          

Particulars Note  As at 
32 Ashadh 2082 

 As at 
31st Ashadh 2081 

Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.15 10,944,949,722.69     11,879,684,895          
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.16 -                             -                             
Derivative Financial Instrument 4.17 -                             -                             
Deposits from Customers 4.18 12,414,842,815          10,620,712,337          
Borrowing 4.19 -                             -                             
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 90,785,775                 -                             
Provisions 4.20 -                             -                             
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.12 -                             -                             
Other Liabilities 4.21 2,763,855,180            2,432,445,721            
Debt Securities Issued 4.22 -                             -                             
Subordinated Liabilities 4.23 -                             -                             
Total Liabilities 26,214,433,493          24,932,842,954          
Equity
Share Capital 4.24 1,536,171,546            1,347,518,900            
Share Premium -                             -                             
Retained Earnings 800,461,843               607,650,840               
Reserves 4.25 1,548,788,491            1,341,691,697            
Total equity attributable to equity holders
Non-controlling interest
Total Equity 3,885,421,880            3,296,861,438            
Total Liabilities and Equity 30,099,855,373          28,229,704,392          
Contingent Liabilities and Commitment 4.26
Net assets value per share 253 245                             
The accompanying notes are  integral part of these financial statements.

  __________________                     __________________                  ____________________
  Bikram Raj Subedi                      Shyam Chandra Khatiwada               Indra Narayan Dev Waisya
  Chairman                                               Director                                                Director                                                    

  __________________                     __________________                  ____________________ ________________
  Sanjay Kumar Mandal                 Prakash Kumar Shrestha                  Sonila ShakyaDr. Bandana Kumari Jain CA. Aswani Bansal
  Chief Executive Officer                              Director                                         Director Proprietor

A. Bansal & Associates
  __________________                     __________________                  ____________________ Chartered Accountants
  Anjay Kumar Mandal                   Gokarna Khatiwoda                         Ashok Sitoula
  Chief Finance Officer                              Director                                          Director

  Date:
  Place: 

Jeevan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Financial Position

As on 32 Ashadh 2082 (16 July 2025)



hLjg ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8

;ftf}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*!÷*@

40

Figures in NPR

Particulars Note
 For the year 

ending 32 Ashadh 
2082 

 For the year ending 
31st Ashadh 2081 

Interest Income 4.27 4,035,480,543         3,593,272,625           
Interest Expense 4.28 (1,933,928,176)        (2,107,815,544)         
Net Interest Income 2,101,552,367         1,485,457,081           
Fee and Commission Income 4.29 276,421,420            277,366,546              
Fee and Commission Expense 4.30 (4,926,811)               (13,678,215)              
Net Fee and Commission Income 271,494,609            263,688,331              
Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income 2,373,046,976         1,749,145,412           
Net Trading Income 4.31 -                           -                            
Other Operating Income 4.32 38,131,609              58,814,432                
Total Operating Income 2,411,178,584         1,807,959,844           
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.33 257,920,222            745,640,939              
Net Operating Income 2,153,258,363         1,062,318,905           
Operating Expense
Personnel Expenses 4.34 (994,210,913)           (744,889,065)            
Other Operating Expenses 4.35 (132,473,171)           (97,825,004)              
Depreciation & Amortisation 4.36 (35,992,453)             (40,714,891)              
Operating Profit 990,581,826            178,889,946              
Non Operating Income 4.37 58,023,859              118,386,884              
Non Operating Expense 4.38 (518,006)                  (506,643)                   
Profit before Income Tax 1,048,087,679         296,770,187              
Income Tax Expense 4.39 341,658,601            86,721,129                

Current Tax 418,442,787            232,154,912              
Deferred Tax (76,784,186)             (145,433,784)            

Profit for the period 706,429,078            210,049,058              
Profit attributable to:
    Equity holders of the Bank 706,429,078            210,049,058              

Non-controlling interests -                           -                            
Profit for the year 706,429,078            210,049,058              
Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share 48.99                       16.61                         
Diluted earnings per share 45.99                       15.59                         

The accompanying notes are  integral part of these financial statements.

  __________________                     __________________                  ____________________
  Bikram Raj Subedi                      Shyam Chandra Khatiwada               Indra Narayan Dev Waisya
  Chairman                                              Director                                               Director                                                    

  __________________                     __________________                  ____________________ _____________________
  Sanjay Kumar Mandal                 Prakash Kumar Shrestha                  Dr. Bandana Kumari Jain CA. Aswani Bansal
  Chief Executive Officer                              Director                                        Director Proprietor

A. Bansal & Associates

  __________________                     __________________                  ____________________

Chartered Accountants

  Anjay Kumar Mandal                   Gokarna Khatiwoda                         Ashok Sitoula
  Chief Finance Officer                              Director                                          Director

  Date:
  Place: 

Jeevan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss 

As on 32 Ashadh 2082 (16 July 2025)
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Figures in NPR

Particulars  For the year ending 
32 Ashadh 2082 

 For the year 
ending 31st Ashadh 

2081 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 4,039,229,999            3,572,361,507         
Fees and other income received 314,458,019               336,180,978            
Dividend received -                             -                          
Receipts from other operating activities 10                               118,386,884            
Interest paid (1,752,315,098)           (2,102,462,705)        
Commission and fees paid (4,926,811)                  (13,641,130)             
Cash payment to employees (827,087,398)              (731,164,388)           
Other expense paid (151,283,042)              (98,368,732)             
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities 1,618,075,679            1,081,292,416         

(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank (5,000,000)                  (23,500,000)             
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 80,000,000                 170,000,000            
Other trading assets -                             -                          
Loans and advances to bank and financial institutions -                             -                          
Loans and advances to customers (1,678,632,409)           (3,798,185,403)        
Other assets (53,546,896)                (88,237,839)             
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities -                          
Due to bank and financial institutions (934,735,173)              3,027,099,383         
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank -                             -                          
Deposit from customers 1,794,130,478            501,248,474            
Borrowings -                             -                          
Other liabilities (26,354,813)                (36,783,550)             
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid 793,936,867               832,933,481            
Income taxes paid (251,088,334)              (232,146,021)           
Net cash flow from operating activities 542,848,533               600,787,460            
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities -                             -                          
Receipts from sale of investment securities -                             -                          
Purchase of property and equipment (12,861,551)                (68,019,814)             
Receipt from the sale of property and equipment 121,150                      -                          
Purchase of intangible assets -                             638,305                   
Receipt from the sale of intangible assets -                             -                          
Purchase of investment properties -                             -                          
Receipt from the sale of investment properties -                             -                          
Interest received -                             -                          
Dividend received -                             -                          
Others -                             -                          
Net cash used in investing activities (12,740,401)                (67,381,509)             

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt securities -                             -                          
Repayment of debt securities -                             -                          
Reciepts from issue of subordinated liabilities -                             -                          
Repayment of subordinated liability -                             -                          
Receipts from issue of shares -                             -                          
Dividends paid (9,929,087)                  (8,710,498)               
Interest paid -                             -                          
Other receipt/payment (49,709,832)                (36,970,536)             
Net cash from financing activities (59,638,919)                (45,681,034)             
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 470,469,213.56          487,724,917.20       
Opening Cash and cash equivalents 1,445,656,419            957,931,502            
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 1,916,125,633            1,445,656,419         
The accompanying notes are  integral part of these financial statements.              As per our report of even date

  __________________                   _____________________                  ______________________
  Bikram Raj Subedi                      Shyam Chandra Khatiwada               Indra Narayan Dev Waisya
  Chairman                                                   Director                                           Director                                                    

  __________________                     __________________                  ____________________ _____________________
  Sanjay Kumar Mandal                 Prakash Kumar Shrestha                  Dr. Bandana Kumari Jain CA. Aswani Bansal
  Chief Executive Officer                              Director                                        Director Proprietor

A. Bansal & Associates
  __________________                     __________________                  ____________________ Chartered Accountants
  Anjay Kumar Mandal                      Gokarna Khatiwoda                         Ashok Sitoula
  Chief Finance Officer                              Director                                          Director

  Date:
  Place: 

Jeevan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

As on 32 Ashadh 2082 (16 July 2025)
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Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Net Profit/(loss) as per Statement of Profit or Loss 706,429,078                     210,049,058             
Appropriation
a. General Reserve (141,285,816)                    (42,009,812)              
b. Foreign Exchange Fluctuation fund
c. Capital redemption reserve
d. Corporate social responsibility fund (7,064,291)                        (2,100,490.58)           
e. Employees training fund -                                   -                            
f. Client  Protection Fund (10,596,436)                      (2,100,491)                
g. Other
    i. Fair Value Reserves
    ii. Investment Adjustment Reserve
    ii. CPF Interest  income Tax Adjustment -                            
    iii. Other Adjustments -                                   -                            
Profit/(loss) before regulatory adjustment 547,482,536                     163,838,265             
Regulatory Adjustments:
a. Interest Receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received(+) 3,934,927                         (11,325,820)              
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts(-)/reversal(+)
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment(-)/reversal(+)
d. Short provision for possible losses on Non-Banking Assets (-)/reversal(+)
e. Deferred Tax Assets recognized(-)/reveral(+) (101,739,779)                    (139,591,124)            
f. Goodwill recognized (-)/Impairment of Goodwill(+)
g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal(+) -                                   24,381,000               
h. Actuarial Loss recognized (-)/reversal(+) (58,229,718)                      13,632,872               
i. Reshedule & Restructure Writeback (+/-) to Reserve -                                   (36,039,716)              
i. Reshedule & Restructure Writeback   from reserve  to Retained Earing -                                   83,944,832               
Net Profit for the year end 31 Asar 2081 available for distribution 391,447,965                     98,840,310               
Opening Retained Earning As on 1st Shrawan 607,650,840                     682,964,560             
Adjustments(+/-) (55,229)                            41,169                      
Distribution:
Bonus Share issued (188,652,646)                    (165,484,700)            
Cash Dividend Paid (9,929,087)                        (8,710,498)                
Total Distributable profit or (loss) as on year end 800,461,843                     607,650,840             
Annualized Distributable Profit/Loss Per Share 52.11                                45.09                        

Statement of Distributable profit or loss

As on 32 Ashadh 2082 (16 July 2025)

As per NRB Regulation
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Jeevan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.  
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts 

 

1 Reporting Entity 
Jeevan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited (‘D-class Microfinance Development Bank' or “the 
Company”) is a public company incorporated under the Companies Act, 2063 and licensed by Nepal 
Rastra Bank to conduct banking transaction as a “D” Class Financial Institution under the Bank and 
Financial Institution Act, 2073. The Microfinance has its central Office at Katahari-1, Morang. The 
Microfinance received the license to commence banking operations on 3rd Falgun, 2075 BS 
(February 15, 2019 AD). The Microfinance’s Equity Shares are listed in Nepal Stock Exchange. The 
objective of the Microfinance is to serve the poor backward communities of rural areas and to uplift 
the economic status of Nepal by investing in different economic sectors under economic liberalization 
policy, understanding diverse customer needs and providing broad mix of financial services to 
business and individuals. 
 
The Authorized Capital of the company is Rupees 2,000,000,000/- and the Issued Capital is Rupees 
1,536,171,546/-. 67.5 percent of the Paid-Up Capital is held by the promoter and remaining 32.5 
percent is held by the general public. The shares of the Company are listed at Nepal Stock Exchange 
Limited (NEPSE). The shareholder composition of the Microfinance is as follows (as of 2082-03-32). 
 
  

S.N Ownership Percent 
1 General Public 32.50 
2 Other Institution 44.43 
3 Other (Individual Promoter) 23.07 
 Total 100.00 

 

S.N Ownership Percent 
1 Promoter Shares 67.50 
2 Ordinary Shares 32.50 
 Total 100.00 

 

2 Basis of Preparation 
The financial statements of the Microfinance have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting 
except the Cash flow information which is prepared, on a cash basis, using the indirect method. 
The interest income is recognized on effective interest rate method. 
The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or 
Loss and Statement ofOther Comprehensive Income shown in two separate statements, the 
Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes to the Accounts. 
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of financial statements are set out 
below in point number 3. These policies are consistently applied to allthe years presented, 
except for the changes in accounting policies disclosed specifically.  

2.1 Statement of compliance 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting 
Standards (NFRS) adopted by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) of Nepal, pronounced by 
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and as per the directives no. 4 of 
Unified Directives, 2081 issued by Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB).Certain carve-outs have been 
applied in preparation of these financial statements. 
The financial statements have been prepared on the going-concern basis, as management is 
satisfied that the microfinance has adequate resources to continue as a going concern for the 
foreseeable future. 
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These financial statements consist Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss 
and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and 
Statements of Cash Flows along with the necessary and related notes as per prescribed by 
Directive no. 4. 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting 
Standards (NFRS) adopted by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) of Nepal.  
The Company presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity. An 
analysis regarding recovery or settlement within twelve months after the reporting date (current) 
and more than twelve months after the reporting date (non-current) is presented in the 
respective notes. 

2.2 Reporting period and approval of financial statements 
Reporting Period is a period from the first day of Shrawan (mid-July) of any year to the last day 
of Ashadh (mid-July) of the next year as per Nepalese calendar.  

The Microfinance follows the Nepalese financial year based on Nepali calender starting 
from 1stShrawan 2081 to 32ndAshad 2082 (16th July 2024 to 16th July 2025).. 
 Nepalese Calendar English Calendar 
Current Year 2081/82 2024/25 
 
Previous Year 2080/81 2023/24 
 

The Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 2082.08.26 
The Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with the requirements of Nepal 
Financial Reporting Standards. 

 Functional and presentation currency 
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Currency (NPR) (rounded to the nearest 
Rupee unless otherwise stated), which is the company’s functional currency. The 
Microfinancedetermines the functional currency and items included in the financial statements 
are measured using that functional currency. 

2.3 Use of Estimates, assumptions and judgments 

The preparation of the Microfinance’s financial statements requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, 
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent 
liabilities. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial 
statements are prudent and reasonable Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could 
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or 
liabilities affected in future periods. 
Information about assumptions and estimation that have a significant risk of resulting in a 
material adjustment within the next financial year are: 

• Key assumptions used in discounted cash flow projections. 
• Measurement of defined benefit obligations. 
• Provisions, commitments and contingencies. 
• Determination of net realizable value. 
• Determination of useful life of the property, plants and equipment. 
• Assessment of the Microfinance’s ability to continue as going concern. 
• Determination of fair value of financial instruments; and property and equipment. 
• Impairment of financial and non-financial assets. 
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• Assessment of current as well as deferred tax. 

2.4 Changes in Accounting Policies 
The Company has consistently applied the accounting policies to all periods presented in these 
financial statements except for new or revised statements and interpretations implemented 
during the year. The nature and effect of new standards and interpretations are discussed in note 
that follows. 

2.5 New standards in issue but not yet effective 
A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have 
been issued by IASB after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those 
become applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS.The standards and 
interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the 
Microfinance’sfinancial statements are disclosed below. The Microfinanceintends to adopt 
these standards, if applicable, when theybecome effective. 
A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations 
have been issued by IASB after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. 
Those become applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS. 

 

2.6 New Standards and interpretation not adapted 
All Nepal Accounting Standards and Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and other 
interpretation issued by ASB of Nepal have been adapted while preparing financial statements. 

 

2.7 Discounting 

Non- current assets and liabilities are discounted where discounting is material.  

3 Significant Accounting Policies 

The principal accounting policies applied by the microfinancein the preparation of these 
financial statements is presented below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the 
years presented unless stated otherwise. 

3.1 Basis of Measurement 
The financial statements are prepared on the historical-cost basis except for the following 
material items in the statement of financial position: 

 
S.N. Items Basis of measurement 

1 Liability for employees 
defined benefit obligations 

Projected unit credit method using Actuarial 
Valuation. 

2 Liability for long service 
leave Actuarial valuation. 

3 Lease liability Present value of the lease payments over the 
lease term. 

4 
Investment securities at fair 
value through Other 
comprehensive income 

At Fair Value  
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Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are based on 
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The 
estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously 
evaluated by the Company. Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively 
in the period in which the estimates are revised and in the future periods. The areas involving a 
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are 
significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in notes that follow. 

Distinction of Current and Non-Current 
Assets 
All the assets except the property, plant and equipment’s and deferred tax assets are classified 
as current assets unless specific additional disclosure is made in the notes.  

Liabilities 
All the liabilities except the defined benefit plan obligations are classified as current liabilities 
unless specific additional disclosure is made in the notes. 

Materiality and Aggregation 
In compliance with NAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements, each material class of similar 
items is presented separately in the financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or functions 
are presented separately unless they are material. 

 

3.2 Cash and cash equivalent 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash at vault and agency bank account balances, unrestricted 
balances with NRB, highly liquid financial assets with original maturity of 3 months from the 
date of its acquisition and are readily convertible to cash, which are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value. Cash and Cash equivalent are measured at amortized cost in the 
statement of financial position. 
Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared by using the ‘Direct Method’ in accordance with 
NAS 07- Statement of Cash Flows. 

  

3.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities 

Recognition 

The Microfinance initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of 
financial position when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. The Microfinance initially recognize loans and advances, deposits; and debt 
securities/ subordinated liabilities issued on the date that they are originated which is the date 
that the Microfinance becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 
Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debenture, Government securities, NRB bond or 
deposit auction, reverse repos, outright purchase are recognized on trade date at which the 
Microfinance commits to purchase/ acquire the financial assets. Regular way purchase and sale 
of financial assets are recognized on trade date. 

Classification 

i. Financial Assets 

The Microfinance classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or 
fair value on the basis of the Microfinance’s business model for managing the financial assets 
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The two classes of financial 
assets are as follows: 

1. Financial assets measured at amortized cost 
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The Microfinance classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the 
following conditions are met: 

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to 
collect contractual cash flows and 

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

2. Financial asset measured at fair value 

Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value. 
Financial assets measured at fair value are further classified into two categories as below: 

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are 
held for trading or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial 
recognition, transaction costs are directly attributable to the acquisition are 
recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair 
value and changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss. 

 

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 
Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial 
recognition, the Microfinance makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent 
changes in fair value of the instrument is to be recognized in other comprehensive 
income are classified as financial assets at fair value though other comprehensive 
income. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value 
are recognized in other comprehensive income. 
 

ii. Financial Liabilities   

The Microfinance classifies the financial liabilities as follows: 

a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they 
are held for trading or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial 
recognition, transaction cost is directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized 
in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value is 
recognized at profit or loss 

 
b) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are 
classified as subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method. 

Measurement 

Financial assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income(FVTOCI) 

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by 
instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income 
pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity 
investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value 
plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses 
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated 
in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’.  The cumulative 
gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments. 

A financial asset is held for trading if: 

• it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or 
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• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the 
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or 

• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial 
guarantee.  

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in Statement of Profit and 
Loss when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the 
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not 
represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be 
measured reliably. Dividends recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss are included in the 
‘Other income’ line item. 

 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably 
elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive 
income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading. 

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are 
measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the 
FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL. 

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the 
FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation 
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise 
from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different 
bases. 

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with 
any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. The 
net gain or loss recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any dividend or interest 
earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item. Dividend on 
financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is 
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to 
the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the 
amount of dividend can be measured reliably. 

 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL 

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or 
is designated as at FVTPL. 

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: 

• it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or 
• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the 

Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or 
• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument  

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at 
FVTPL upon initial recognition if: 

• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition 
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; 

• the financial liability forms part of a company of financial assets or financial liabilities or 
both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in 
accordance with the Company’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and 
information about the Company is provided internally on that basis; or 
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• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and NFRS 9 
permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with 
NFRS 9. 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-
measurement recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognized in 
Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is 
included in the ‘Other income’ line item. 

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the 
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the 
credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition 
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would 
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of 
changes in credit risk are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. The remaining amount of 
change in the fair value of liability is always recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in other 
comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently 
reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost 

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are 
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts 
of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on 
the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset 
is included in the ‘Finance costs’ line item. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial 
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is 
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid or 
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other 
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where 
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

 

De-recognition 

i. De-recognition of financial assets 

The Microfinance derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the financial asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in 
which the Microfinance neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.    

Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for de-recognition that is created or 
retained by the Microfinance is recognized as a separate asset or liability. On de-recognition of 
a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset, and the sum of  

(i) The consideration received and 
(ii) Any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is 

recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss. 
The Microfinance enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its 
Statement of Financial Position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards 
of the transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or substantially all risks and rewards are 
retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognized. Transfers of assets with retention of 
all or substantially all risks and rewards include, for example repurchase transactions. 
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ii. De-recognition offinancial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the 
original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognized in Statement of Profit or 
Loss. 

  

Determination of fair value 

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit 
price) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in 
theprincipal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Microfinance has 
access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. 

When available, the Microfinance measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted 
price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for 
the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing 
information on an ongoing basis. If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the 
Microfinance uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the 
factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction. 

The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows: 

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or 
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments 
valued using models where all significant inputs are observable. 

Level 3 portfolios are those where there are unobservable inputs of the instruments. The inputs 
are not based on observable market data. 

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the 
transaction price i.e., the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Microfinance 
determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair 
value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability 
(Level 01 valuation) nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable 
markets (Level 02 valuation), then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, 
adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction 
price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over 
the life of the instrument but not later than when the valuation is wholly supported by 
observable market data or the transaction is closed out. In case the fair value is evidenced by a 
quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability (Level 01 valuation), the 
difference between the transaction price and fair value is recognized in profit or loss 
immediately. 

  

Impairment 

 The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model, as mandated by NFRS 9, estimates probability-weighted 
credit losses over the life of financial assets, reflecting cash shortfalls between contractual and 
expected cash flows. This forward-looking approach incorporates reasonable and supportable 
information about past events, current conditions, and future economic forecasts. the ECL 
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famework was implemented to ensure compliance with NFRS 9 and NRB’s Expected Credit Loss 
Related Guidelines, 2024, enhancing transparency in credit risk provisioning. 

ECL measurement reflects:   
1. Unbiased and Probability-Weighted Outcomes: Evaluated across multiple scenarios (base, 

optimistic, pessimistic) with weights of [specific weightings, e.g., 30% base, 20% optimistic, 
50% pessimistic].   

2. Time Value of Money: Discounted using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) of [specific 
approach, e.g., loan-specific coupon rates].   

3. Reasonable and Supportable Information: Sourced from [specific sources, e.g., NRB 2.2 
reports, macroeconomic forecasts from National Statistics Office]. 

Classification of Financial Assets 

As per NFRS 9, financial assets were classified based on the business model and contractual cash 
flow characteristics:   
• Amortized Cost: Loans and advances, including [specific loan types, e.g., discipline loan, 

normal loan,].   
• Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI): [Specific assets, e.g., bonds with 

recycling].   
• Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL): [Specific assets, if applicable; note FVTPL 

assets are exempt from ECL] 

 
ECL was calculated for assets at amortized cost, FVOCI with recycling, loan commitments, 
financial guarantees, lease receivables, and contract assets, as specified in NFRS 9.5.5.1. 

ECL Calculation Approaches 

The ECL  was calculated using the following approaches, tailored to the portfolio characteristics:   
1. General Approach:   

A. Stage 1 (12-Month ECL):  
Applied to financial assets with no significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial 
recognition, including assets overdue by up to 1 month or rated [specific rating, e.g., RDM 
2C or above].   

B. Stage 2 and 3 (Lifetime ECL):  
Applied to assets with SICR or credit impairment, such as those overdue by more than 1 
month, classified as ‘watchlist,’ or non-performing per NRB directives.   

ECL was calculated as: 

ECL = PD × LGD × EAD × Discount Factor 

where PD (Probability of Default), LGD (Loss Given Default), and EAD (Exposure at Default) 
were derived using [ e.g., Vasicek model for PD, collateral-based LGD]. 

 
2. Simplified Approach:   

Applied to trade receivables without significant financing components, using lifetime ECL 
based on [specific method, e.g., historical loss rates adjusted for forward-looking factors].   

 
3. Purchased or Originated Credit-Impaired (POCI) Assets:   
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Initial ECL was incorporated into the credit-adjusted EIR, with subsequent changes in lifetime 
ECL recognized as loss allowances. [Specify if applicable, e.g., “No POCI assets were 
identified in [Bank Name]’s portfolio”]. 

 
 
 
Stage Assessment: 

Financial assets were segmented into three stages based on credit risk since initial recognition, 
using quantitative and qualitative criteria:  

Stage 1: 
12 months ECL has been calculated and recognized for financial assets classified under this stage. 

i. Initially recognized financial instruments (other than those purchased or originated credit 
impaired financial assets) 

ii. Financial instruments having no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. 
iii. Financial assets in which contractual payments are not overdue or are overdue for up to 1 

month. 
iv. Financial instruments having low credit risk at the reporting date. 

 
For this purpose, instruments with low credit risk includes: 
• All exposures on Nepal Government/Province/Local Level or Nepal Rastra Bank 
• Exposures fully guaranteed by Nepal Government/Province/Local Level. 
• Foreign Sovereign exposures having rating BBB- and above from an external rating agency 

at the reporting date. 
• All exposures on BIS, IMF, EC, ECB and multilateral development banks with risk weight 

of 0% as defined in Capital Adequacy Framework 2015. 
• Debenture/bonds having rating of AA or above at reporting date from external credit rating 

agency.  
• The Microfinance shall determine at each reporting date whether the financial instruments 

meet the requirement of low credit risk. If the instrument does not meet the requirement of 
low credit risk, the Microfinance shall determine whether the risk of default on the financial 
instrument has been increased significantly or not after the initial recognition. If the risk has 
been increased, the instrument shall be classified under stage 2 and accordingly lifetime ECL 
shall be recognized. 

• Internal Credit Rating up to RDM 2C. 
Stage 2: 
Lifetime ECL has been calculated and recognized for financial instruments classified under this 
stage. 
This stage includes the following: 

i. Financial instruments having significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. 
ii. Financial instruments having contractual payments overdue for more than 1 month but not 

exceeding 3 months. 
iii. Loans classified as ‘Watchlist’ as per NRB directive on prudential provisioning. 
iv. Loans without approved credit line or with credit line revoked by bank 
v. Loan that has been restructured/rescheduled but not classified as non-performing loan as per 

existing provisions of NRB directives. However, rescheduling installment/EMI based loans 
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resulting in reduction in number of installments due to prepayments or change in number of 
installments due to change in interest rates under floating interest rates are not applicable. 

vi. Claims on non-investment grade financial instruments i.e. with a credit rating of BB+ or 
below. 

vii. Internal Credit Rating of RDM 3 or downgraded by 2 notches. 
 

 
Stage 3: 
Lifetime ECL has been calculated and recognized for financial assets classified under this stage. 
This stage includes the following: 

i. Financial instruments having contractual payments overdue for more than 3 months.  
ii. The Microfinance considers that the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the 

bank in full, without realizing securities (if held). 
The indicators of unlikeness to pay include: 
• The Microfinance puts credit obligation on non-accrued status. 
• The Microfinance consents to distressed restructuring of credit obligation resulting in 

reduction in financial obligation due to material forgiveness, postponement of principal, 
interest 

• The Microfinance has filed for the debtor’s bankruptcy or a similar order in respect of 
the borrower’s credit obligation. 

• The Microfinance sells a part of the credit obligation at a material credit-related 
economic loss. 

• The debtor has sought or has been placed in bankruptcy or similar protection where this 
would avoid or delay repayment of the credit obligation. 

• There is evidence that full repayment based on contractual terms is unlikely without the 
Microfinance's realization of collateral regardless of whether the exposure is current or 
past due by a few days. 

iii. Loan is classified non- performing as per NRB prudential provisioning directive.  
iv. Credit impaired financial instruments with objective evidence of impairment.  
v. The financial assets classified as purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) assets as 

per NFRS 9. POCI assets also refer to new loans disbursed during the current reporting 
period for accounts that were classified under Stage 3 at previous reporting date. 

vi. Internal Credit Rating of RDM 4 and above. 

 

Indicators of Significant Increase in Credit Risk 

NFRS 9 and the NRB Guidelines on Expected Credit Loss (ECL), the project incorporated a 
structured approach to determine whether a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) has occurred 
since initial recognition of a financial asset. This assessment is crucial to determine whether a 12-
month ECL or a lifetime ECL should be recognized. 

Definition and Judgement 
NFRS 9 does not prescribe a strict definition of “significant,” allowing entities to apply 
professional judgement in establishing internal criteria. As per NFRS 9.B5.5.7, a significant 
increase in credit risk is generally expected to occur before a financial asset becomes credit-
impaired. The project adopted a policy framework incorporating both quantitative and qualitative 
factors, consistent with paragraph NFRS 9.B5.5.17 and NRB expectations. 
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Definition of Default 
Consistent with NFRS 9.B5.5.37, the project used the Microfinance’s internal definition of default, 
which aligns with regulatory guidance. A rebuttable presumption was applied, wherein default is 
assumed to occur no later than 90 days past due, in line with Basel norms and NRB regulations, 
unless there is reasonable and supportable evidence to rebut this presumption. 

Indicators Incorporated 
The following NRB-prescribed SICR indicators were embedded into the ECL model and policy 
framework: 
• More than 1 month past due 
• Absolute lifetime PD ≥ 5% 
• Relative increase in lifetime PD ≥ 100% 
• Downgrade in risk rating by 2 notches since initial recognition 
• Downgrade to non-investment grade (BB+ or below) 
• Deterioration in future cash flows or other credit risk determinants 
• Anticipated forbearance or restructuring due to financial distress 
• Adverse sectoral or industry prospects 
• Negative macroeconomic forecasts affecting borrower viability 
• Loan restructuring/modification due to financial weakness 
• Weaker internal credit quality indicators compared to initial recognition 
• Management-imposed enhancements in collateral or covenants due to deteriorating credit risk 

These indicators were integrated into the model’s staging criteria to ensure a forward-looking, 
dynamic risk assessment process. The approach supports timely transition of assets from Stage 1 to 
Stage 2, enhancing the accuracyand responsiveness of the ECL framework. 

Curing Period and Transfer Criteria Between Stages: 
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1: 
The Microfinance has been applied where a significant reduction in credit risk was evident. 
 
Transfer Out of Stage 3:  
For exposures previously in Stage 3, probationary monitoring periods of 3 months have been 
enforced prior to any upgrade. 
 
For Restructured/Rescheduled Exposures:  
For exposures previously in Stage 3, probationary monitoring periods of 24 months have been 
enforced prior to any upgrade. 
All upgrades between stages have been reviewed and authorized by the Risk Management 
Department, with proper documentation and justification. 
 

Provisioning for other financial assets at amortized cost 
In addition to the ECL for loans and investments as prescribed above, the Microfinance also holds 
other financial assets such as balances with bank, working advances and other financial assets. The 
Microfinance recognizes ECL on such assets based on the historical loss experience measures (e.g. 
write off rates / provisioning rates) adjusted for expected losses in the future keeping in mind the 
nature of industry (e.g. regulated industry like banking) and credit ratings of such counterparties. 
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Individual Impairment: 

BFIs have to implement individual impairment testing for exposures. For exposures with no 
identified individual impairment, collective assessment has been carried out using prudent 
historical credit risk indicators. 
 

Impairment Charge of the bank for the FY 2081/82 

The sanstha for the current financial year has assessed impairment under para 5.5 of the NFRS 9 
impairment model and the NRB Directive.  

The Bank, following regulatory backstop as mentioned Clause 16 of “NFRS 9- Expected Credit 
Loss Related Guidelines, 2024” has recognize impairment on credit exposures as the HIGHER 
of total ECL calculated as per NFRS 9 and existing regulatory provisions as mentioned in 
Unified NRB Directives no 02. The Following table below depicts the calculation of impairment 
allowance as per NFRS 9 and NRB Directives: 

 

Particular  Final Outstanding (as 
per 2.2) 

Total Exposure (EAD)- 
Calculated ECL LLP as per 

NRB  
Stage 1 25,363,090,234.48 25,756,299,481.65 285,827,742.93 157,285,153.74  

Stage 2 897,677,141.90 1,313,133,067.74 345,806,682.84 322,758,512.7  

Stage 3 2,623,225,740.54 2,035,575,456.65 1,205,851,556.84 1,422,231,594.38  

Additional Provision       163,044,664.01  

Total  28,883,993,116.92 29,105,008,006.04 1,837,485,982.61 2,065,319,924.83  
 

Date Particulars Provision (Rs) 
Oppening Additional Loan Loss Reserves- CIC 2,857,659.30  
2082/03/32 Additional Provision - Digital Loan Outstanding              3,583,871.08  

  Additional Provision (As per Risk Committee)          156,603,133.63  
  Total          163,044,664.01 

Note: From the total additional provision of NPR 163,044,664.01, amount of Rs 156,603,133.63 
has been provision as Additional Provision for Future Risks, as per the decision of the Risk 
Committee dated 2082.08.24 

Impairment of investment in equity instrument classified as fair value though other 
comprehensive income 

Objective evidence of impairment of investment in an equity instrument is a significant or 
prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost. Impairment losses are recognized by 
reclassifying the losses accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity to profit or loss. The 
cumulative loss that is reclassified from equity to profit or loss is the difference between the 
acquisition cost, net of any principal repayment and the current fair value, less any impairment 
loss recognized previously in profit or loss. 
 

3.4 Trading assets 
Interest income on all trading assets is considered to be incidental to the microfinance’s trading 
operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and 
liabilities in net trading income. 

Interest expense on all trading liabilities is considered to be incidental to the microfinance’s 
trading operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading 
assets and liabilities in net trading income. 
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3.5 Property and Equipment 
a) Recognition and Measurement 

Property and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the assets will flow to the Finance and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured. The 
cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Cost of 
self-constructed assets includes followings: 

• Cost of materials and direct labour; 

• Any other cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for 
their intended use; and 

• Capitalized borrowing cost 

Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment loss if any. Neither any class of the property and equipment are measured at 
revaluation model nor is their fair value measured at the reporting date.  
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from the 
expenditure will flow to the entity. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in 
working condition are expensed as incurred. 
Any gain or losses on de-recognition of an item of property and equipment is recognized in 
profit or loss. 

 
b) Capital work in progress 

Assets in the course of construction are capitalised in the assets under capital work in progress 
account (CWIP). At the point when an asset is capable of operating at management’s intended 
use, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and 
equipment and depreciation commences. Where an obligation (legal or constructive) exists to 
dismantle or remove an asset or restore a site to its former condition at the end of its useful life, 
the present value of the estimated cost of dismantling, removing or restoring the site is 
capitalized along with the cost of acquisition or construction upon completion and a 
corresponding liability is recognized. 
c) Depreciation 

Property and equipment's are depreciated based on the remaining useful life basis from the date 
of adoption of NFRS as determined by the Management.  Depreciation is recognized in profit or 
loss. Land is not depreciated. Charging of depreciation is ceased from the earlier of the date 
from which the asset is classified as held for sale or is derecognized. 

The estimated useful lives of significant items of property and equipment for current year and 
comparative periods are as follows: 

Class of Assets Useful Life 
Building 20 years 
Leasehold Assets 10 Years 
Vehicles 10 years 
Furniture and Fixtures 7 Years 
Machinery 7 years 
Equipment and Others 7 years 
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• The capitalized value of Software Purchase and installation costs are amortized over a 
maximum 5 years’ period or within the ownership period. 

• Assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. For assets 
purchased/sold during the year, depreciation is provided upto the date of use on pro-rata 
basis.  

3.6 Intangible assets 
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either 
individually or at the cash generating unit level. Such intangibles are not amortised. The useful 
life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether 
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life 
assessment from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. 

The intangible asset with finite useful lives is amortised over the useful economic life and 
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be 
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a 
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful 
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset 
are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated 
as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite 
lives is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in 
the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. 

Certain computer software costs are capitalized and recognised as intangible assets based on 
materiality, accounting prudence and significant benefits expected to flow therefrom for a 
period longer than one year.  

The estimated useful lives of significant items of intangible assets for current year and 
comparative periods are as follows: 

Class of Assets Useful Life 
Computer Software 5 years 

 

3.7 Investment Property 
Investment property is the land or building or both held either for rental income or for capital 
appreciation or for both, but not for sale in ordinary course of business and owner-occupied 
property. The Microfinance holds investment property that has been acquired through the 
enforcement of security over the loan and advances.  

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying 
amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that 
cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing 
of an investment property. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at 
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from 
changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in the income statement in the 
year in which they arise. Investment properties which are initially measured at cost are 
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss if any.  

Fair values are evaluated annually by an accredited external, independent valuator. 

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of, or when the 
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is 
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expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment 
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of retirement or disposal. 

 

3.8 Income tax 
The Company is subject to tax laws of Nepal. Income Taxes have been calculated as per the 
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 2058. Deferred tax is recorded on temporary differences 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, at the rates that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The ultimate realisation of deferred 
tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable profits during the periods in which 
those temporary differences and tax law carry-forwards become deductible. The company 
considers the expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income 
making this assessment. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realisable, however, 
could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry-forward 
period are reduced. 

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items directly recognised in equity 
or in other comprehensive income. 

Current Tax 

Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit 
differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of 
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable 
or deductible.  

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount 
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws 
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting 
date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Current 
income tax assets and liabilities also include adjustments for tax expected to be payable or 
recoverable in respect of previous periods. 

Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation 
purposes.  

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) enacted or substantively enacted at the 
reporting date and that are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or 
the deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and 
reversed if it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realised. The 
measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner 
in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of 
its assets and liabilities.  

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of 
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will 
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of 
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except: 

i. Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from 
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business 
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor 
taxable profit or loss. 

ii. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in 
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised 
only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the 
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foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary 
differences can be utilised. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or 
loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to 
set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the 
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

3.9 Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities 
Microfinance deposits consist of money placed into the Microfinance by its customers. These 
deposits are made to various saving deposit accounts. Details and further disclosures about 
deposits have been explained in Note that follows. 

3.10 Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a 
result of a past event, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle 
the obligation and when the amount can be reliably estimated. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle 
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, considering the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to 
settle the present obligation, it carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when 
the effect of the time value of money is material). 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be 
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as asset if it is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is: 

• a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the entity; or 

• present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because: 
o it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 

will be required to settle the obligation; or 
o the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the entity. 

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for 
completion of assets. 

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each 
reporting period. 

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the 
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations 
under the contract. 

3.11 Revenue Recognition 
Revenue comprises of interest income, fees and commission, foreign exchange income, cards 
income, disposal income etc. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the 
economic benefits will flow to the Microfinance and the revenue can be reliably measured. 
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Revenue is not recognized during the period in which its recoverability of income is not 
probable. The bases of incomes recognition are as below: 

 

Interest income 

Interest income is recognized in profit or loss using effective interest method. Effective interest 
rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through 
the expected life of financial asset or liability to the carrying amount of the asset or liability. 
The calculation of effective interest rate includes all transactions cost and fee and points paid or 
received that are integral part of the effective interest. The transaction costs include incremental 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets.  

Interest income presented in statement of comprehensive income includes: 
• Interest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost calculated on an effective 

interest rate method. These financial assets include loans and advances including staff 
loans, investment in government securities, investment in corporate bonds, investment in 
NRB Bond and deposit instruments, reverse repos, inter banking lending etc. 

• Interest on investment securities measured at fair value, calculated on effective interest rate. 

• Income on discounted instruments like bills purchased, documents negotiation is recognized 
over the period of discounting on accrual basis using effective interest rate. 

• Interest income on all trading assets is considered to be incidental to the Microfinance’s 
trading operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading 
assets and liabilities in net trading income. 

• Interest income accrued but not received from Loan and Advance except Stage 3 has been 
recognized in the current year interest income. Interest income on Loans and Advances is 
recognized as per the Guideline on Recognition of Interest Income, 2025 issued by NRB 

 

Fee and commission income 

Fees and commission income that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset 
are included in measurement of effective interest rate. Other fees and commission income 
including management fee, service charges, syndication fee, forex transaction commission, 
commission of issue of guarantee are recognized as the related services are performed.  

Dividend income 

Dividend on investment in resident company is recognized when the right to receive payment is 
established. Dividend income is presented in net trading income, net income from other 
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss or other revenue based on the 
underlying classification of the equity instruments. 

Net trading income 

Results arising from trading activities include all gains and losses from changes in fair value 
and related interest income or expense and dividends for financial assets and financial liabilities 
held for trading. This includes any ineffectiveness recorded in hedging transactions. 

 

Net income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss 

Financial assets and financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been 
designated by management upon initial recognition. Management may only designate an 
instrument at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition when the following 
criteria are met, and designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis: 
• The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would 

otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on 
them on a different basis. 
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• The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or 
both, which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in 
accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy. 

• The financial instrument contains one or more embedded derivatives, which significantly 
modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract. 

 
Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in the 
statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in Net gain or 
loss on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss is recognised 
in statement of Profit or Loss. Interest earned or incurred is accrued in Interest income or 
Interest expense, respectively, using the effective interest rate (EIR), while dividend income is 
recorded in other operating income when the right to the payment has been established. 

 

3.12 Interest expense 
Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits is recognized in profit or loss 
using effective interest rate method. Interest expense on all trading liabilities is considered to be 
incidental to the Microfinance’s trading operations and are presented together with all other 
changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income. 

  

3.13 Employees Benefits 
a) Short Term Employee Benefits 

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are 
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is also recognized for the amount 
expected to be paid under bonus required by the prevailing Bonus Actto pay the amount as a 
result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably 
under short term employee benefits. 

Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months after 
the end of the reporting period): 

• wages, salaries and social security contributions; 
• paid annual leave and paid sick leave; 
• profit-sharing and bonuses; and 
• non-monetary benefits  

 
b) Post-Employment Benefit Plan 

Post-employment benefit plan includes followings: 
 

i. Defined Contribution Plan 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays a 
fixed contribution to a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay 
future amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized 
as personnel expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related service are 
rendered by employees. Pre-paid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that 
cash refund or reduction in future payments is available. Contributions to a defined 
contribution plan being due for more than 12 months after the end of the period in which 
the employee render the service are discounted at their present value. The following are the 
defined contribution plan provided by the Microfinance to its employees: 
 

a) Employees Provident Fund   

In accordance with law, all employees of the Microfinance are entitled to receive 
benefits under the provident fund, a defined contribution plan in which both the 
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employee and the Microfinance contribute monthly at a pre-determined rate (currently, 
10% of the basic salary plus grades). Microfinance does not assume any future liability 
for provident fund benefits other than its annual contribution. 

   
ii. Defined Benefit Plan 

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined 
contribution plan. The Microfinance’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans 
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that 
employees have earned in return for their service in current and prior periods. That 
benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service 
costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at 
the reporting date on high quality corporate bonds, that have maturity dates 
approximating the terms of the Microfinance's obligation and that are denominated in 
the currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid. The calculation of obligation 
is performed annually by a qualified actuary using projected unit credit method. 

The Microfinance recognizes all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit 
plans in other comprehensive income and all expenses related to defined benefits plans 
in employee benefit are expensed in profit or loss. 

The following are the defined benefit plans provided by the Microfinance to its 
employees: 

 
a) Gratuity 

Microfinance provides for gratuity on accrual basis covering eligible employees in 
terms of Employee Service Byelaws of the Microfinance. The plan provides for lump 
sum payments to vested employees at retirement or upon death while in employment or 
on termination of employment for an amount equivalent defined days’ eligible salary 
payable for each completed years of service. 
 

b) Leave Encashment  

The employees of the Microfinance are entitled to carry forward a part of their 
unveiled/ unutilized leave subject to a maximum limit. The employees can 
encashunveiled/ unutilized leave partially in terms of Employee Service Byelaws of the 
Microfinance. The Microfinance accounts for the liability for entire accumulated 
outstanding leave balance on accrual basis as per Employee Service Byelaws of the 
Microfinance. 

 
c) Termination Benefits 

Termination benefits are recognized as expense when the Microfinance is demonstrably 
committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal plan to provide 
termination benefits to employees as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary 
redundancy. Termination benefits are recognized if the Microfinance has made an offer 
for voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted and the number 
of acceptances can be measured reliably. If the benefits are payable in more than 12 
months after the reporting date, they are discounted to their present value. 

3.14 Leases 
NFRS 16 – Leases has introduced a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to 
recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the 
underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is required to recognize a right-of-use asset 
representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its 
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obligation to make lease payments. The Microfinance has applied NFRS 16 effective from FY 
2078-79.  

For any new contracts entered into, The Microfinanceconsiders whether a contract is, or 
contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that convey the right to 
use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’. To apply 
this definition, the Microfinance assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations 
which are whether: 

• The contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract 
or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to The 
Microfinance 

• The Microfinancehas the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use 
of the identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined 
scope of the contract.  

• The Microfinancehas the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period 
of use. The Microfinanceassess whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ 
the asset is used throughout the period of use. 

 

The Microfinance as a Lessee: 

At lease commencement date, the Microfinance recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease 
liability on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the 
initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Microfinance, 
an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease,and any lease 
payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received).  

The Microfinance depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the 
end of the lease term. The Microfinance also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment 
when such indicators exist.  

At the commencement date, the Microfinance measures the lease liability at the present value of 
the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if 
that rate is readily available or the Microfinance’s incremental borrowing rate.  

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and 
increased for interest. It is re measured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there 
are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is re-measured, the 
corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right of-
use asset is already reduced to zero.  

The Microfinance has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 
using the practical expedients. Instead of recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the 
payments in relation to these are recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term. On the statement of financial position, right of-use assets have been 
included in property, plant and equipment and lease liabilities have been included in trade and 
other payables 

In line with this requirement, previously recognized operating lease liability has been regrouped 
in to Lease liability and Right of Use Assets. 

Company as a Lessors 

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all of the risks and benefits of 
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in 
negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and 
recognised over the lease term on the same bases as rental income. Contingent rents are 
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.  
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3.15 Share capital and reserves 
The Microfinance classifies the capital instruments as equity instruments or financial liabilities 
in accordance with the substance with the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is 
defined as residual interest in total assets of an entity after deducting all its liabilities. Common 
shares are classified as equity of the Microfinance and distributions thereon are presented in 
statement of changes in equity. 
The Microfinance is required to maintain the capital adequacy ratio imposed by the regulator. 
The ratio is fixed at 8% for current year and the Microfinance has maintained the required ratio. 
Incremental costs directly attributable to issue of an equity instruments are deducted from the 
initial measurement of the equity instruments. 

 

3.15.1 Statutory General Reserves 
Microfinance is required to appropriate a minimum 20%of current year’s net profit into this 
heading each yearuntil it becomes double of paid-up capital and thenafter a minimum 10% of 
profit each year. This reserveis not available for distribution to shareholders in anyform and 
requires specific approval of the centralbank for any transfers from this heading. 

 

3.15.2 Capital reserve 
This is a non-statutory reserve and represents the amount of all the capital nature reserves such 
as the amounts arising from share forfeiture, capital grants and capital reserve arising out of 
business combinations. Funds in this reserve are not available for distribution of cash dividend 
but can be capitalized by issuing bonus shares upon obtaining prior approval from the central 
bank. 

 

3.15.3 CorporateSocial ResponsibilityFund 
Microfinance is required to appropriate an amount equivalent to 1% of net profit into this fund 
annually. The fund is created towards funding the Microfinance’s corporate social 
responsibility expenditure during the subsequent year. Balance in this fund is 
directlyreclassified to retained earnings in the subsequent year to the extent of payments made 
under corporate social responsibility activities. 
MovementinCSRFundduringthisfiscalyear: 

Particulars Amount (NPR.) 
Opening balance 2100490.579 
Additions to fund: 7,064,291 
1% of Net profit             7,064,290.78  
Deductions from fund:              2,100,490.58  
CSR expenses             2,100,490.58  
Closing balance              7,064,290.78  

 

3.15.4 Client protection fund 
Clientprotectionfundiscreatedat1.5%ofnetprofit as per NRB Directives. 
Movement in CPF Fund during this fiscal year: 

Particulars Amount (NPR.) 
Opening balance 141,353,486.57 
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Additions to fund: 23,472,011 
1% of Net profit 10,596,436.18 
Interest income allocated to 
fund 

11,689,171.93 

Transfer from other fund  1,183,004.00 
other Adjustment  3,399.00 
Deductions from fund: 59,829,687 
Client protection expenses 59,829,686.53 
Closing balance 104,995,811.15 

 

3.15.5 Regulatory Reserve 
This is a non-free statutory reserve and is a requirement as prescribed in NRB directive. In the 
transition to NFRS from previous GAAP the microfinance is required to reclassify all amounts 
that are resultant of re-measurement adjustments and that are recognizedin retained earnings 
into this reserve heading. The amount reclassified to this reserve includes: 

• Re-measurement adjustments such as interestincome recognized against interest 
receivablesi.e. Accrued Interest Receivable after consideringeffect of bonus and income 
tax. 

•  Difference in loan loss provision as per NRBdirective and impairment on loan and advance 
asper NFRS, 

• Amount equals to deferred tax assets, 

• Actuarial gain/loss recognized in othercomprehensive income, 

• Amount of goodwill recognized under NFRS. 

• Non-Banking assets after taking effect of bonusand income tax. 

A detail of regulatory reserve has been presented herewith: 

F/Y FY 2080-81 FY 2081-82 
Interest Receivable 143,178,853.02 139,243,926.51 
Deferred tax assets 239,287,533.21 342,371,275.54 
Actuarial Loss recognized                        50,032,415                      108,262,132  
Total 432,498,800.82 589,877,334.35 

 

3.15.6 Actuarial Gain/Loss Reserve 
This is a non-statutory reserve and is a requirement in the application of accounting policy for 
employee benefits. NAS 19 requires that actuarial gain or loss resultant of the change in 
actuarial assumptions used to value defined benefit obligations be presented under this reserve 
heading. Any change in this reserve heading is recognized through other comprehensive 
income and is not an appropriation of net profit. 

Particular  FY 2080-81 FY 2081-82 
Opening Acturial Reserve  (63,665,287.00)    (50,032,414.60) 
(Transfer) / Reverse     13,632,872.40  372,363,466.52 
Closing Acturial Reserve  (50,032,414.60)  (108,262,132.30) 
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3.15.7 Employee Training Fund 
Microfinance is required to incur expenses towardsemployee training and development for an 
amountthat is equivalent to at least 3% of the preceding year’ssalary and allowance. Any 
shortfall amount in meetingthis mandatory expense requirement in the currentyear will have to 
be transferred to this reserve fundthrough appropriation of net profit and the amountshall 
accumulate in the fund available for relatedexpenses in the subsequent year. Balance in 
thisfund is directly reclassified to retained earnings in thesubsequent year to the extent of 
expenses made foremployees training related activities. 

Particulars Amount (NPR.) 
Opening balance (A)           6,156,389  
Required 3 % of Basic Salary & allowances (B)          13,889,411  
Actual Training Expenses(C)          14,348,422  
Less Expenses Amount transfer to Training Fund (D) (B-C)                      -    
Closing balance (A+D)           6,156,389  

3.15.8 Restructure &Reschedule write back fund 
The disclosure relating to effect of this provision is as follows: 

Particular 208182 208081 
Opening Balance of Restructure fund (A) 84,973,087        132,878,202  
RestructureWriteback Amount this Year  -    1,485,309  
70% of Restructure Writeback  Amount (B) -    6,039,716  
Transfer from  Restructure Fund to Retained Earning © -    83,944,832  
Closing Balance  of Restructure Fund(A+B-C) 84,973,087          84,973,087  

3.16 Earning per share including diluted 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year by the weighted 
average number of equities shares outstanding during the year. 

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year as adjusted for 
dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating 
to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares 
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity 
shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would 
decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity 
shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been 
issued at a later date. 
There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between 
the reporting date and the date of the completion of these financial statements which would 
require the restatement of earnings per share. 
 

3.17 Segment reporting 
An operating segment is a component of the Microfinance that engages in business activities 
from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that 
relating to transactions with any of the Microfinance’s other components, whose operating 
results are reviewed by the management to make decision about resource allocation to each 
segment and assess its performance. Since the Chief Operating Decision Makermonitors the 
activities of the Microfinance as a whole, the Microfinance has classified a single operating 
segment. 
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5 Disclosures & Additional Information 

5.1 Risk Assessment andManagement 
Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Microfinance may be unable to meet short term financial 
demands. This usually occurs due to the inability to convert a security or hard asset to cash 
without a loss of capital and/or income in the process. 

Factors of Liquidity Risk includes Deterioration in quality of credit portfolio Concentrations in 
either assets or liabilities, Rapid asset growth funded by highly volatile large deposits, A large 
size of off-balance sheet exposure. 

The Microfinance has applied following mitigates for the management of Liquidity Risk: 
• Appropriate composition of assets and liabilities 
• Diversified and stable sources of funds 
• Access to inter-bank market 
• Contingency funding plan for crisis situations 
• Regular stress testing 
• Cushion of liquid assets held 
• Consistent analysis using liquidity ratios 
• Review of Deposit Mix Concentration. 

Such mitigates are monitored by BOD, Finance and Credit Department, Internal Audit 
Department. 

 

Credit Risk 

A credit risk is the risk of default on a debt that may arise from a borrower failing to make 
required payments. In the first resort, the risk is that of the lender and includes lost principal 
and interest, disruption to cash flows, and increased collection costs. Factors for the credit risk 
include Counterparty Risk, Concentration Risk and Securitization Risk.  

The Microfinance has applied following mitigates for management of Credit Risk factors: 
• Independent and ongoing credit quality review 
• Limiting credit exposures 
• Problem credit management system 
• Diversification of risk asset portfolio among several sectors and sub sectors of the 

economy over a large number of customers 
• Deposit of borrower in bank, cash margin and additional collateral at individual level 
• Proper valuation, storage, maintenance and insurance of collaterals. 

Such mitigates are monitored by Board of Directors, Risk Management Committee which is 
Board Level Committee, Credit Risk Management Department, NRB Inspection team and 
Internal Audit Department of the Microfinance 
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Fair value of Financial Assets and Liabilities 

Fair Value of financial assets and liabilities risk management includes effective portfolio 
management by finance department which is monitored by BOD, and other high-level officials 

 

5.2 Capital Management 
The capital management approach of the Microfinance is driven by its desire to maintain a 
strong capital base to support the development of its business and to meet the regulatory capital 
requirements at all times. 

As Capital is the centrepiece of the Microfinance’s performance matrix, a sound capital 
management forms the very core of the overall performance landscape to ensure that the 
Microfinance delivers on its objective of maximizing the shareholder’s value. The senior 
management of the Microfinance is engaged and responsible for prudent capital management at 
all times. In compliance with the regulatory requirement of increasing the capital base as 
prescribed by the Central Bank, the Microfinance is comfortable in meeting the minimum 
capital requirements and is strongly positioned to meet the performance benchmarks. 

1. Capital Structure and a Breakdown of its Components:   
Tier 1 Capital and a breakdown of its components is as follows: 
 

A. Core Capital  (Rs. In '000) 

S.
N. Description  

Period 
Current  Previous  

1 Paid up Capital (ordinary shares)                     
1,536,171.55  

                      
1,347,518.90  

2 Proposed bonus share     
3 Share premium     
4 Irredeemable preferential share     

5 General Reserve Fund                        
865,327.67  

                         
724,041.86  

6 Accumulated profit/(loss)                        
800,461.84  

                         
607,650.84  

7 Profit & loss a/c as per balance-sheet     
8 Capital Redemption Reserve Fund     
9 Capital Adjustment Fund     

10 Calls in advance     

11 Other Free Reserves                                             
-    

12 ECL Transtional Adjustment as per 15.1  of  ECL 
guidance 2024 

                                        
-      

Deductions:     
a Goodwill     

b Deferred tax assets                                         
-    

                                          
-    

c Investment on shares and securities in excess of 
limits     

d Investment to the company having financial 
interests     

e Fictitious Asset     

f Investment on land and building for self use not 
complying the Directives of NRB     
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g Investment on land development and housing 
construction in excess of limits     

h Underwriting share not sold within the stipulated 
time     

i Credit and other facilities banned by the prevailing 
laws     

Total Core Capital (A)                     
3,201,961.06  

                      
2,679,211.60  

    
    

B.  Supplementary capital   

S.
N. Description  Period 

    Current  Previous  

1 Provisions of loan loss made for performing  loan                        
495,144.95  

                         
292,538.93  

2 Additional loan loss provision                                             
-    

3 Hybrid capital instruments     
4 Unsecured Subordinated Term Debt     
5 Exchange Equalization Fund     

6 Assets revaluation Fund (max. 2% of Supplementary 
capital is added automatically)     

7 Investment adjustment Fund     

Total Supplementary Capital (B)                     
495,144.95  

                         
292,538.93  

C.  Total Capital Fund (A+B)                     
3,697,106.01  

                      
2,971,750.53  

D.  Minimum capital Fund to be maintained based on Risk Weighted 
Assets:   

1 Minimum Capital Fund Required (8.0 % of RWA)                     
2,485,812.43  

                      
2,333,044.17  

2 Minimum Core Capital Required (4.0 % of RWA)                     
1,242,906.21  

                      
1,166,522.09  

3 Capital Fund maintained ( in %) 11.90% 10.19% 
4 Core Capital maintained (in %) 10.30% 9.19% 
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• Details of Subordinated Term Debt:  
No Subordinated Term Debt has been issued. 
 

• Details of Additional Loan Loss Provision: 
Additional Loan Loss Provision of Rs.16,30,44,664.01has been made during the year 2024- 
25 is done to overcome the present situation of Liquidity crises in the market due to which the 
regular transaction of members may also be affected and hence to face challenge if any, in the 
future the additional provision is done. 

Risk Management Function 

Jeevan BikasLaghubittaBittiyaSanstha Limited (JBLB) is exposed to various types of risks including 
credit, market, liquidity, operational, legal, compliance and reputation risks. The objective of the risk 
management framework at the Microfinance is to ensure that various risks are understood, measured 
and monitored and that the policies and procedures established to address these risks are strictly 
adhered to. the Microfinance has set up a strong control and monitoring environment for 
comprehensive risk management at all levels of operation. 
 

Measurement of Risks for Capital Adequacy Purpose:  
Under Pillar 1 of the specific NRB guidelines, the Microfinance company currently follows 
Simplified Standardized Approach for Credit Risk, Basic Indicator Approach for Operational Risk 
and Net Open Position approach for Market risk.  
 

A. Credit Risk  
Strategies and Process:  
All credit related aspects are governed by Operation Manual of Jeevan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya 
Sanstha Limited. These documents outline the type of products that can be offered, customer 
categories, credit approval process and limits. These documents are approved by the Board of 
directors.  

The Microfinance Company’s main emphasis is on SME credit. Different limits of lending power 
have been assigned at branch level, department head level and the credit committee level. Every 
aspect relating to credit such as procedure, documentation etc. are clearly defined in the Operation 
Manual and the Credit Policy of the Microfinance.  

Pre-Sanction:  
The branch managers have the authority to approve the credit within their permissible limits after due 
scrutiny of background of the promoter, nature of business, turnover in the account, other financial 
indicators, income, collateral and security. Loans above the authority of branch are recommended to 
head office for further decision.  

Credit Risk Assessment Process:  
Risk Management Department carries out a comprehensive credit risk assessment process that 
encompasses analysis of relevant quantitative and qualitative information to ascertain credit rating of 
the borrower. The credit rating process involves assessment of risk emanating from various sources 
such as market risk, management risk, environmental risk, financial risk and security risk taking into 
consideration as much as 30 sub-parameters under each of these categories. Credit thresholds have 
been set for forwarding the credit files for risk rating before they are submitted for approval in the 
credit committee by the concerned credit units.  

Post Sanction Monitoring/ Follow up:  
Concerned branch are required to obtain regular information of the business. In case of revolving 
loans, the drawing power is checked commensurate with the existing level of stocks and working 
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capital checked and verified at regular interval. The credit units at the Head Office are also required to 
prepare quarterly credit report to submit at higher level as a part of formal monitoring process.  
 

B. Operation Risk  
Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people or 
systems, or from external events. Operational risk is inherent in the Microfinance’s business activities.  

The board level committee that undertakes supervision and review of operational risk aspects are the 
Risk Management Committee and Audit Committee. The board and the risk committee review the 
operational risk level and the material operational risk exposure. The Audit committee supervises 
audit and compliance related aspects. Internal Audit department on the other hand carries out audit 
according to the audit plan and reports findings to the audit committee.  
 

Risk Arising from breakdown of Information and Operating System:  

The Microfinance has implemented centralized software Empower Accounting Software and has 
improved in its MIS infrastructure in order to ensure the associated operational risks being brought 
down to an acceptably low level.  

To safeguard the probable losses resulting from system failure or natural disaster, the Microfinance 
has taken following policies to minimize the risk:  

a. Back up – Daily back up of all balances are taken at the end of the day. the Microfinance is 
developing a system of auto back up in the near future.  

b. Disaster Recovery Site – the Microfinance has established disaster recovery site. 
c. Validation of Entry and Password control – There is a system of maker and checker for entry 

validation before posting. Access authority for data entry, update, modification and validation 
has been given on the basis of levels of staffs. 

d. Exception Reporting – The system creates exception report as and when required.  

Risk Arising from Procedural Lapses and Internal control:  

The company has defined every banking procedure in the Operation Manual related to banking 
transactions. Internal circulars are issued whenever required. Reporting by branches is regular.  

Corporate Governance:  

NRB Guidelines with respect to Corporate Governance are duly complied with.  

C. Market Risk  
a. Investments  

Currently Jeevan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd has not made any investment for 
trading purpose. The investment in government securities have been made to hold till 
maturity. The investment in equity of listed institutions has been held as available for sale.  
 

b. Foreign Exchange  
The company’s policy is to maintain the net open position of convertible foreign currency 
where exchange rate risk persists in matching position.  
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5.3 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities  
 

Particulars Fair 
Value 

through 
PL 

Amortized 
Cost 

Fair 
Value 

through 
OCI 

Total 

Financial Assets: 
    

Cash and Cash equivalents 
 

1,916,125,633 
 

1,916,125,633 
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 

 
128,500,000 

 
128,500,000 

Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions 
 

40,000,000 
 

40,000,000 
Loans and advances to B/FIs 

   
- 

Loans and advances to customers 
 

27,289,680,265 
 

27,289,680,265 
Investment securities (Govt. &Development Bonds) 

 
- 

 
- 

Investment securities (Equity) 
   

- 
Other Financial assets 

 
112,197,579 

 
112,197,579 

Total financial Assets - 29,486,503,476 - 29,486,503,476 
Financial Liabilities: 

    

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 
   

- 
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 

   
- 

Deposits from customers 
 

12,414,842,815 
 

12,414,842,815 
Other Financial Liabilities 

 
26,997,817 

 
26,997,817 

Debt securities issued 
   

- 
Total financial Liabilities - 12,414,842,815 - 12,441,840,632 

 

5.4 Operating segment Information 
1. General Information 

a) The Microfinance’s operation is managed centrally through Head Office. All 
strategic, financial and operational policies and operations are controlled and 
directed from the head office. The microfinance operates in 159branches though 
has a single jurisdiction. 

b) The Microfinance has identified following segments as reportable: 
a. Banking Segment involves functions like collecting deposits and lending 

activities among other similar activities. 
b. Treasury Segment involves short term and long-term investment activities like 

investing in T-Bills, Bonds, Shares of companies etc. 
c. Remittance Segment involves activities of transferring / receiving funds locally 

and/or globally. 

 There is no inter-unit cost transfer mechanism within the microfinance. 
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2.  Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities are 
presented below:  (Figures in NPR) 

Particulars Banking Treasury Remittance All Other 
Segments 

a. Revenues from external 
customers 

               
4,311,901,963      

           
96,155,467.63  

b. Intersegment revenues         

c. Net Revenue 4,311,901,963    96,155,468  
d. Interest revenue 4,035,480,543        

e. Interest Expense 1,933,928,176    
 

f. Net interest revenue (b) 2,101,552,367  -      -    
g. Depreciation and amortization*         

h. Segment Profit / (Loss) 2,101,552,367     
i. Other Material non cash item         

k. Impairment of assets         

l. Segment Assets* 29,334,305,898    
 

m. Segment liabilities* 12,414,842,815        

     
4. Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities: 

 

a)      Revenue   
Total revenue of reportable segments 4,311,901,963 
Other revenue 96,155,467.63 
Elimination of intersegment revenue 

 

Entity's revenues 4,408,057,430 
b)      Profit or Loss 

 

Total profit or loss for reportable segments 2,101,552,367 
Other profit or loss 

 

Elimination of intersegment profits 
 

Unallocated amounts: (1,053,464,688) 
Profit before income tax 1,048,087,679 
c)      Assets 

 

Total assets for reportable segments 29,334,305,898 
Other assets 

 

Unallocated amounts 765,549,476 
Entity's assets 30,099,855,373 
d)      Liabilities 

 

Total liabilities for reportable segments 12,414,842,815 
Other liabilities 

 

Unallocated liabilities 13,799,590,678 
Entity's liabilities 26,214,433,493   

5.Information about product and service 
 

  

Revenue from each type of product and services described in point 1 (b) above. 
a) Banking 4,311,901,963 
b) Treasury - 
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c) Remittance - 
6.Information about geographical areas 

 

Revenue from following geographical areas 
 

a) Domestic Amount 
  Bagmati     251,449,975.55  
  Koshi  2,852,916,126.84  
  Madhesh     903,527,138.16  
  Gandaki Province                               -    
  Lumbini Province                               -    
  Karnali Province                               -    
  Sudur Paschim Province                               -    

b) Foreign                              -    
  Total  4,007,893,240.55  

 
7. Information about major customer: 

None of the customer individually or as a group contributes to 10% or more of the Microfinance’s 
revenue. 

 

5.5 Share options and share based payment  
There is no share-based payment made by the Microfinance. 

5.6 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 
Litigation is a common occurrence in the banking industry due to the nature of business 
undertaken. The Microfinance company has formal controls and policies for managing legal 
claims. Once professional advice has been obtained and the amount of loss reasonably 
estimated, the microfinance makes adjustment to account for adverse effect which the claims 
may have on its financial standing. Contingent liabilities on other matters have already been 
disclosed in notes 4.28. 

5.7 Related party disclosures  
The related parties of the Microfinance which meets the definition of related parties as defined 
in “NAS 24 Related Parties Disclosure” are as follows: 
 

i. Key Management Personnel (KMP) 
The key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility of 
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly including 
any director. The key management of the Microfinance includes members of its Board of 
Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and other higher-level employee of the Microfinance. The 
name of the key management personnel who were holding various positions in the office during 
the year were as follows: 

  

Name of Key Management Personnel Post 
Bikram Raj Subedi BOD Chairman 
Shyamchandra Khatiwada Director 
Prakash Kumar Shrestha Director 
Indra Narayan Dev Director 
Gokarna Khatiwada Director 
Ashok Sitaula Director 
Bandana Kumari Jain  Independent Director  
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Sanjay Kumar Mandal 
Chief Executive Officer 
Officer / Company 

DamodarRegmi Deputy Chief Executive Officer / Company Secretary 
Bijay Kumar Mandal Senior Manager 
Sudip Kumar Mandal Senior Manager 
Manoj  Kumar Shah Manager 
Binod Prasad Shah Manager 
Ramesh Ray Manager 
Anjay Kumar Mandal Manager 
Sabitridevi Shrestha Manager 
Ramnarayan Yadav Manager 
Ranjana Niraula Senior Officer 
Manoj Kuamr Sharma Senior Officer 
Kumod Kumar Mandal Senior Officer 
Shiv Kumar Ram Senior Officer 

ii. Compensation to Key Management Personnel 
The members of Board of Directors are entitled for meeting allowances. Salary and allowances 
are provided to Chief Executive Officer and other member of Key Management Personnel 
(KMP). Salary and Allowances paid to the Chief Executive Officer is based on the contract 
entered by the Microfinance with him whereas compensation paid to other member of KMP are 
governed by Employees Byelaws and decisions made by management time to time in this 
regard. In addition to salaries and allowances, non- cash benefits like vehicle facility, subsidized 
rate employee loans, termination benefits are also provided to KMP. 
The details relating to compensation paid to key management personnel (directors only) were as 
follows: 

Particular Amount 
Directors' fee 818,000.00  
Directors' expense 1,007,311.00  

 
The details relating to compensation paid to key management personnel other than directors 
were as follows: 

Particulars Amount 
Short term employee benefits (including Bonus and Paid Leave) 2,77,55,149.22 
Vehicle Facility  
*Other Benefits  
Other long-term benefits  
**Post-Employment  

 
*Other benefits and payments include Finance cost calculated towards subsidized Loans and 
advances provided to staffs. 
**Post employment benefit includes Provident fund, Gratuity and Leave provision created, the 
bifurcation of which is not quantifiable separately to KMPs. The provision is made on lump 
sum as per the Actuarial Valuation. 
 

5.8 Merger and acquisition  
No any merger and acquisition has taken in the years presented. 
 

5.9 Additional Disclosure of Non-consolidated entities 
Since, the Microfinance company does not have any subsidiaries, there are no such non-
consolidated entities. 
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5.10 Events after reporting date.  
There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to   32ndAshadh 2082 till the signing 
of this financial statement. 

5.11 Disclosure of Shareholders holding more than 0.5% of total Shareholding 
Name of Shareholder Number of Share Holding 

% 
Amount 

Jeevan BikasSamaj 2,768,571 18.02% 276,857,104 
Prabhu Capital Limited 1,219,279 7.94% 121,927,868 
S.R. Hydro and Investment Pvt. Ltd. 967,339 6.30% 96,733,873 
Bikaska Lagi Sthaniya Swayam 
SewakharukoPrayas (SOLVE-NEPAL) 

687,088 4.47% 68,708,800 

Bharat lalBahardar 537,273 3.50% 53,727,300 
NIC Asia Bank Limited 328,140 2.14% 32,814,000 
Shanti Kumari Mandal 256,827 1.67% 25,682,700 
Rohit Bhandari 234,644 1.53% 23,464,400 
Anita Kumari Gachchhadar 196,945 1.28% 19,694,500 
Lalchand Mandal 186,592 1.21% 18,659,200 
Ganga Prasad Mandal 131,296 0.85% 13,129,600 
Shiv Narayan Mandal 126,246 0.82% 12,624,600 
SamudayikMahilaBikas Kendra (SWDEC) 119,934 0.78% 11,993,400 
Indra Narayan Deo Baishya 101,281 0.66% 10,128,100 
Shyam Chandra Khatiwada 98,093 0.64% 9,809,300 
Ribol Devi Mandal 97,603 0.64% 9,760,300 
AnjulaDungana (Subedi) 94,685 0.62% 9,468,500 
Shyam Prasad Mandal 84,585 0.55% 8,458,500 
DamodarRegmi 82,060 0.53% 8,206,000 
EASTERN SAHARA COMPANY LTD 77,000 0.50% 7,700,000 

Total 8,395,480 1 839,548,045 

5.12 Additional Disclosure for Accrued Interest Receivable (AIR)              Figure in NPR 

2080/81   
AIR closing as on 2080/03/31                         534,751,077.60  
Less: AIR of loan and advance overdue for more than 12 month                         127,391,870.80  
Less: AIR of  Restructure loan                          180,091,186.14  
AIR to be booked till date                         227,268,020.66  
AIR already booked till 2081/3/31                         209,290,529.30  
Interest income to be booked for the period                           17,977,491.36  
  
81/82   
AIR closing as on 2081/03/31                         639,025,129.30  
Less: AIR of loan and advance overdue of stage 3                         418,003,023.73  
    
AIR to be booked till date                         221,022,105.57  
AIR already booked till 2081/3/31                         227,268,020.66  
Interest income to be booked for the period                           (6,245,915.09) 
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5.13 Additional Disclosure 
5.13.1 Proposed Distributions (Dividends and Bonus Shares)  

132thBoard Meeting of microfinance has proposed 14.00%as bonus dividend and 0.7368% cash 
dividend for tax purpose for the reported year, 2081-82. This proposal of the Board of Directors 
is subject to the ratification by the annual general meeting of the shareholders. The proposed 
distribution shall be recognized in equity in the period in which they are paid. 

5.14 Principal Indicators of Last 5 Years 

Particulars Indicat
or 

 Restated As 
per NFRS As per NFRS 

FY 2077-78 FY 2078-79 FY 2079-
80 

FY 2080-
81 

FY 2081-
82 

Net Profit / Total Income % 18.70% 21.10% 8.70% 5.19% 16.03% 
Earning Per Share Rs 111.81 75.42 28.94 16.61 48.99 

Basic Earning Per Share Rs. 111.81 75.42 28.94 16.61 45.99 
Diluted Earning Per Share Rs. 111.81 75.42 28.94 15.59 45.99 

Market Price Per Share Rs. - 1,050.00 1,600.10 1,465.00 1,508.00 
Price / Earning Ratio Times - 13.92 55.29 88.21 30.78 

Dividend on Bonus Share % 0.70 0.14 14.29% 14.29% 0.00% 
Cash Dividend % 0.04 0.01 0.71% 0.71% 0.00% 

Interest Income / Loans and Advances % 12.14% 13.98% 13.98% 13.21% 13.97% 
Employee Expenses / Total Operating 

Expenses % 44.90% 84.09% 83.83% 84.32% 85.51% 

Employee Expenses / Total deposit and 
borrowing % - 0.07 0.07 7.01% 8.01% 

Exchange Income / Total Income % - - - - - 
Staff Bonus / Total Employee Expenses % 17.04% 17.46% 4.73% 5.45% 11.71% 

Net Profit / Loans and Advances % 3.33% 3.31% 1.50% 0.81% 2.59% 
Net Profit / Total Assets % 3.11% 3.14% 1.39% 0.74% 2.35% 

Total Loans and Advances / Total 
Deposit % 252.87% 246.79% 227.29% 243.62% 219.81% 

Total Operating Expenses / Total Assets % 6.60% 3.26% 3.52% 3.13% 3.86% 
Capital Adequacy Ratio       

a) Core Capital % 8.04% 9.98% 9.75% 9.19% 10.30% 
b) Supplementry Capital % 1.25% 1.61% 1.65% 1.00% 1.59% 

c) Total Capital Fund % 9.29% 11.59% 11.40% 10.19% 11.90% 
Cash Reserve ratio (CRR) % 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 1.17% 1.04% 

NPAs / Total Loans and Advances % 0.61% 1.65% 1.65% 4.65% 6.65% 
Base Rate %      

Weighted Average Interest rate Spread % 7.24% 3.42% 3.42% 4.35% 6.11% 
Book Net Worth Per Share Rs. 333 280 264 245 253 

Total Shares Numbe
r 6084000 10342800 1182034

2 
1347518

9 
1536171

5 

Total Employee Numbe
r 832 896 930 996 960 
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hhLLjjgg  lljjssff;;  nn33''lljjQQ  lljjQQLLoo  ;;++::yyff  llnn==  
kk||aaGGwwkkqqddff  ;;++zzff]]wwgg  kk||::ttffjjssff]]  llttgg  ddxxnn]]  lljjjj//00ff,,  @@))**@@  

bbkkmmff    ;;fflljjss  JJoojj::yyff  MM  ;;++zzff]]wwgg÷÷yykk  eePP  kkZZrrfftt  ssffoodd  xx''gg]]  
AAoojj::yyffMM  

;;++zzff]]wwgg  uugg''{{  
kkgg]]{{  ssff//00ff  

^-v_ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] hf/L k'FhL ?= 
!,%#,^!,&!,%$^.– -cIf/df Ps ca{ 
lqkGg s/f]8 Ps;¶L nfv PsxQ/ 
xhf/ kfFr ;o 5ofnL; dfq_x'g]5 . 
;f] k'FhLnfO{ k|lt z]o/ ?= !)).– b/sf 
!,%#,^!,&!%=$^ -Ps s/f]8 lqkGg 
nfv Ps;¶L xhf/ ;ft;o kGw| 
bzdnj rf/ 5_ yfg ;fwf/0f z]o/df 
ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 . 

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] hf/L k'FhL ?= 
!,&%,!@,#%,%^@÷– -cIf/df Ps ca{ 
krxQ/ s/f]8 afx| nfv k}+tL; xhf/ 
kfFr ;o af;¶L ?k}of dfq_ x'g]5 . 
;f] k'FhLnfO{ k|lt z]o/ ?= !)).– 
b/sf !,&%,!@,#%%=^@ -Ps s/f]8 
lqkGg nfv Ps;¶L xhf/ ;ft;o 
kGw| bzdnj rf/ 5_ yfg ;fwf/0f 
z]o/df ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 . 

 jf]g; z]o/ 
hf/L u/] 

kZrft hf/L 
k"FhL / r'Qmf 
k"FhL a[l4 ug{ 
cfjZos 
ePsfn] ^-u_ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] r'Qmf k'FhL ?= 

!,%#,^!,&!,%$^.– -cIf/df Ps ca{ 
lqkGg s/f]8 Ps;ÝL nfv PsxQ/ 
xhf/ kfFr ;o 5ofnL; dfq_x'g]5 . 

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] r'Qmf k'FhL ?= 
!,&%,!@,#%,%^@÷– -cIf/df Ps ca{ 
krxQ/ s/f]8 afx| nfv k}+tL; xhf/ 
kfFr ;o af;¶L ?k}of dfq_ x'g]5 . 
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S.N. Name DistrictName BIName Code PhoneNo Email

1 Branch Office Karsiya Morang Bashudev Kumar Sah 392 9802793701 karsiya@jeevanbikasmf.com

2 Branch Office Majhare Morang Anil Kumar Shah 395 9802793702 majhare@jeevanbikasmf.com

3 Branch Office Budhanagar Morang Dipendra Kumar Yadav 791 9802793703 budhanagar@jeevanbikasmf.com

4 Branch Office Dainiya Morang Hansraj Shah 26 9802793704 dainiya@jeevanbikasmf.com

5 Branch Office Bahuni Morang Yubaraj Khadka 251 9802793705 bahuni@jeevanbikasmf.com

6 Branch Office Jhorahat Morang Khirmati Rajbanshi 69 9802793706 jhorahat@jeevanbikasmf.com

7 Branch Office Sijuwa Morang Raj Kumar Mandal 498 9802793707 sijuwa@jeevanbikasmf.com

8 Branch Office Harinagra Sunsari Rakesh Kumar Thakur 255 9802793708 harinagra@jeevanbikasmf.com

9 Branch Office Pathari Morang Jivan Pokharel 523 9802793709 pathari@jeevanbikasmf.com

10 Branch Office Damak Jhapa Shiva Bhujel 680 9802793710 damak@jeevanbikasmf.com

11 Branch Office Birtabazar Jhapa Dipak Bahardar 193 9802793711 birtabazar@jeevanbikasmf.com

12 Branch Office Gauradaha Jhapa Rita Ghimire 766 9802793712 gauradaha@jeevanbikasmf.com

13 Branch Office Gauriganj Jhapa Rajesh Kumar Mandal 415 9802793713 gaurigunj@jeevanbikasmf.com

14 Branch Office Letang Morang Raja Ram Chaudhary 213 9802793714 letang@jeevanbikasmf.com

15 Branch Office Baniyani Jhapa Rabin Kumar Singh 419 9802793715 baniyani@jeevanbikasmf.com

16 Branch Office Kerabari Morang Dip Narayan Mochi 579 9802793716 kerabari@jeevanbikasmf.com

17 Branch Office Itabhatta Jhapa Kishor Kumar Shah 88 9802793717 itabhatta@jeevanbikasmf.com

18 Branch Office Bhadrapur Jhapa Tulasa Basnet 1029 9802793718 bhadrapur@jeevanbikasmf.com

19 Branch Office Amardaha Morang Sangita Mandal 316 9802793719 amardaha@jeevanbikasmf.com

20 Branch Office Madhuwan Sunsari Nanu Lal Yadav 872 9802793720 madhuwan@jeevanbikasmf.com

21 Branch Office Amahi Morang Sakuntala Rajbanshi 388 9802793721 amahi@jeevanbikasmf.com

22 Branch Office Belbari Morang Krishna Dev Mandal 80 9802793722 belbari@jeevanbikasmf.com

23 Branch Office Shivaganj Jhapa Pankaj Kumar Mandal 150 9802793723 shivagunj@jeevanbikasmf.com

24 Branch Office Surunga Jhapa Jit Hang Younghang 354 9802793724 surunga@jeevanbikasmf.com

25 Branch Office Bahundangi Jhapa Shiba Raj Bishwakarma 794 9802793725 bahundangi@jeevanbikasmf.com

26 Branch Office Katahari Morang Sirjana Khawas 52 9802793726 katahari@jeevanbikasmf.com

27 Branch Office Biratnagar Morang Sarmila Kumari Chaudhary 148 9802793727 biratnagar@jeevanbikasmf.com

28 Branch Office Rajgadh Jhapa Umesh Kumar Majhi 98 9802793728 rajgadha@jeevanbikasmf.com

29 Branch Office Madhumalla Morang Santosh Kumar Sah 250 9802793729 madhumalla@jeevanbikasmf.com

30 Branch Office Tanghandubba Jhapa Yubraj Tajpuriya 397 9802793730 tanghandubba@jeevanbikasmf.com

31 Branch Office Itahara Morang Indira Poudel 400 9802793731 itahara@jeevanbikasmf.com

32 Branch Office Balaha Sunsari Anirudha Thakur 149 9802793732 balaha@jeevanbikasmf.com

33 Branch Office Mahendra Nagar Sunsari Chandan Kumar Kamat 605 9802793733 mahendranagar@jeevanbikasmf.com

34 Branch Office Rajarani Dhankuta Rajesh Kumar Sutihar 440 9802793734 rajarani@jeevanbikasmf.com

35 Branch Office Sindhuli Sindhuli Lawi Narayan Chaudhary 142 9802793735 sindhuli@jeevanbikasmf.com

36 Branch Office Bhiman Sindhuli Binod Kumar Mehata 116 9802793736 bhiman@jeevanbikasmf.com

37 Branch Office Katari Udayapur Binod Kumar Yadav 238 9801092737 katari@jeevanbikasmf.com

38 Branch Office Dudhauli Sindhuli Santosh Adhikari 541 9802793738 dudhauli@jeevanbikasmf.com

39 Branch Office Aaitaware Ilam Rajkumar Kurumbang 809 9802793739 aaitaware@jeevanbikasmf.com

40 Branch Office Bibliyaten Ilam Bishal Shrestha 667 9802793740 bibliyate@jeevanbikasmf.com

41 Branch Office Danawari Ilam Birendra Sah 673 9802793741 danawari@jeevanbikasmf.com

42 Branch Office Rampur Udayapur Arjun Prasad Khadal 176 9802793743 rampur@jeevanbikasmf.com

43 Branch Office Jhangajholi Sindhuli Bhawesh Kumar Jha 345 9802793744 jhangajholi@jeevanbikasmf.com

44 Branch Office Mangalbare Ilam Dhiraj Kumar Rajbanshi 533 9802793742 mangalbare@jeevanbikasmf.com

45 Branch Office Rani Morang Manoj Kumar Shah 53 9802793745 rani@jeevanbikasmf.com

46 Branch Office Rangeli Morang Nirmala Rajbanshi 65 9802793746 rangeli@jeevanbikasmf.com

47 Branch Office Amahi Belha Sunsari Vijay Kumar Mehta 803 9802793747 belha@jeevanbikasmf.com

48 Branch Office Budhabare Dhankuta Anil Kumar Sah 682 9802793748 budhabare@jeevanbikasmf.com

49 Branch Office Hile Dhankuta Sanjit Kumar Mandal 356 9802793749 hile@jeevanbikasmf.com

50 Branch Office Sisabanibadahara Morang Bechan Kewat 198 9802793750 sisbanibadhara@jeevanbikasmf.com

51 Branch Office Ramailo Morang Jaman Sari Rai 157 9802793751 ramailo@jeevanbikasmf.com

52 Branch Office Chhitaha Sunsari Abin Kumar Mandal 195 9801092752 chhitaha@jeevanbikasmf.com

53 Branch Office Dharan Sunsari Kamala Kunwar 785 9802793753 dharan@jeevanbikasmf.com

54 Branch Office Hadiya Budhabare Jhapa Bisan Shrestha 808 9802793755 hadiyabudhabare@jeevanbikasmf.com

55 Branch Office Ramchowk Morang Pradhuman Sah 72 9802793754 ramchowk@jeevanbikasmf.com

56 Branch Office Hanshposha Sunsari Minati Rajbanshi 168 9802793756 hanshposha@jeevanbikasmf.com

57 Branch Office Pathariya Jhapa Subash Karki 81 9802793758 pathariya@jeevanbikasmf.com

58 Branch Office Dewanganj Sunsari Bhagwat Lal Mandal 296 9802793757 dewangunj@jeevanbikasmf.com

59 Branch Office Chakmake Sindhuli Subesh Kumar Das 565 9802793759 chakmake@jeevanbikasmf.com

BRANCH OFFICE
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60 Branch Office Rabi Ilam Chandan Kumar Singh 275 9802793760 rabi@jeevanbikasmf.com

61 Branch Office Tankisinuwari Morang Shanti Devi Bhandari 793 9802793761 tankisinuwari@jeevanbikasmf.com

62 Branch Office Shree Antu Ilam Khagendra Chamlagai 548 9802793762 shreeantu@jeevanbikasmf.com

63 Branch Office Dakaha Sindhuli Sanjaya Khadka 669 9802793763 dakaha@jeevanbikasmf.com

64 Branch Office Tetariya Morang Reshma Kumari Mandal 515 9802793764 tetariya@jeevanbikasmf.com

65 Branch Office Bhedetar Dhankuta Sitaram Shrestha 788 9802793765 bhedetar@jeevanbikasmf.com

66 Branch Office Urlabari Morang Nagendra Karki 845 9802793766 urlabari@jeevanbikasmf.com

67 Branch Office Simariya Sunsari Santosh Kumar Mandal 386 9802793767 simariya@jeevanbikasmf.com

68 Branch Office Naya Bazar Ilam Ganesh Bhujel 773 9802793768 nayabazar@jeevanbikasmf.com

69 Branch Office Dharampur Jhapa Prasuram Shah 20 9802793769 dharampur@jeevanbikasmf.com

70 Branch Office Prithivinagar Jhapa Enjeena Limbu 399 9802793770 prithivinagar@jeevanbikasmf.com

71 Branch Office Tandi Morang Yadav Kumar Raut 390 9802793771 tandi@jeevanbikasmf.com

72 Branch Office Jitpur Dhankuta Nabin Pariyar 811 9802714650 jitpur@jeevanbikasmf.com

73 Branch Office Ankhisalla Dhankuta Krishna Prasad Gangai 62 9802714651 chhintang@jeevanbikasmf.com

74 Branch Office Murkuchi Udayapur Prem Thapa 806 9802714652 murkuchi@jeevanbikasmf.com

75 Branch Office Hadiya Udayapur Shrawan Kumar Mandal 146 9802714653 hadiya@jeevanbikasmf.com

76 Branch Office Tapli Udayapur Antosh Kumar Sah 460 9801092776 tapli@jeevanbikasmf.com

77 Branch Office Marin Sindhuli Sajan Mandal 991 9801092877 marin@jeevanbikasmf.com

78 Branch Office Babiyabirta Morang Ramkumar Mandal 171 9820750079 babiyabirta@jeevanbikasmf.com

79 Branch Office Khayarmara Mahottari Upendra Kumar Mandal 500 9820750078 khayarmara@jeevanbikasmf.com

80 Branch Office Aadarshanagar Morang Ram Narayan Chaudhari 325 9802760380 adarshanagar@jeevaanbikasmf.com

81 Branch Office Rajbiraj Saptari Santosh Kumar Mandal 87 9802760795 rajbiraj@jeevanbikasmf.com

82 Branch Office Dhankuta Dhankuta Dipak Kumar Das Baniya 178 9802760781 dhankuta@jeevanbikasmf.com

83 Branch Office Chhinnamasta Saptari Mukesh Kumar Chaudhary 329 9802760799 chhinnamasta@jeevanbikasmf.com

84 Branch Office Hanumannagar Saptari Govinda Prasad Sah 84 9802760796 hanumannagar@jeevanbikasmf.com

85 Branch Office Kathauna Saptari Samir Yadav 721 9802760797 kathauna@jeevanbikasmf.com

86 Branch Office Kanchanpur Saptari Lochan Yadav 772 9802760798 kanchanpur@jeevanbikasmf.com

87 Branch Office Siraha Siraha Jitendra Kumar Yadav 898 9802760800 siraha@jeevanbikasmf.com

88 Branch Office Pakhribas Dhankuta Chiranjivi Kumar Yadav 51 9802760782 pakribas@jeevanbikasmf.com

89 Branch Office Sindhuwa Dhankuta Dhirendra Prasad Gupta 676 9802760783 sindhuwa@jeevanbikasmf.com

90 Branch Office Gaighat Udayapur Bikash Kumar Singh 383 9802760801 gaighat@jeevanbikasmf.com

91 Branch Office Leguwa Dhankuta Arun Kumar Rai 816 9802760784 leguwa@jeevanbikasmf.com

92 Branch Office Mulghat Dhankuta Dipak Kumar Rajbanshi 97 9802760785 mulghat@jeevanbikasmf.com

93 Branch Office Myanglung Terhathum Pradip Kumar B.k. 313 9802760786 manglung@jeevanbikasmf.com

94 Branch Office Bode Barsain Saptari Yadunandan Kumar Sah 220 9802760802 barsain@jeevanbikasmf.com

95 Branch Office Mudhesanischare Sankhuwasabha Domi Ram Harijan 79 9802760787 mudhesanischare@jeevanbikasmf.com

96 Branch Office Dashami Panchthar Diwakar Kumar Rajbanshi 478 9802760788 dashami@jeevanbikasmf.com

97 Branch Office Chisapani Panchami Ilam Niresh Rai 833 9802760789 panchami@jeevanbikasmf.com

98 Branch Office Bhojpur Bhojpur Bhoj Raj Khanal 521 9802760790 bhojpur@jeevanbikasmf.com

99 Branch Office Basantapur Terhathum Bikash Kumar Sah 702 9802760791 basantapur@jeevanbikasmf.com

100 Branch Office Tumlingtar Sankhuwasabha Ramesh Kumar Shrestha 136 9802760794 tumlingtar@jeevanbikasmf.com

101 Branch Office Kadmaha Saptari Kabiraj Khawas 138 9802760803 kadmaha@jeevanbikasmf.com

102 Branch Office Chainpur Sankhuwasabha Jiban Kumar Rai 780 9802760792 chainpur@jeevanbikasmf.com

103 Branch Office Ghoretar Bhojpur Bigendra Rai 800 9802760793 ghoretar@jeevanbikasmf.com

104 Branch Office Laukahi Sunsari Surya Narayan Mandal 107 9802760804 laukahi@jeevanbikasmf.com

105 Branch Office Patari Siraha Raghu Nath Gangai 191 9802760805 patari@jeevanbikasmf.com

106 Branch Office Kalyanpur Siraha Bikas Prasad Sah 424 9802760806 kalyanpur@jeevanbikasmf.com

107 Branch Office Dahipaudi Siraha Dilip Kumar Singh ( Gangai) 132 9802760807 dahipaudi@jeevanbikasmf.com

108 Branch Office Karjanha Siraha Shiv Charan Mandal 173 9802760808 karjanha@jeevanbikasmf.com

109 Branch Office Balan Bihul Saptari Harilal Bahardar 199 9802760809 bihul@jeevanbikasmf.com

110 Branch Office Patto Saptari Pramod Kumar Sah 777 9802760810 patto@jeevanbikasmf.com

111 Branch Office Dhangadhi Siraha Suresh Prasad Gangai 229 9802760811 dhangadhi@jeevanbikasmf.com

112 Branch Office Choharba Siraha Shyam Kishor Das 903 9802760812 choharba@jeevanbikasmf.com

113 Branch Office Bideha Dhanusa Rabindra Kumar Yadav 849 9802760813 bideha@jeevanbikasmf.com

114 Branch Office Sabaila Dhanusa Lalit Kumar Ray 362 9802760814 sabaila@jeevanbikasmf.com

115 Branch Office Kisanpur Dhanusa Maheshwar Prasad Mandal 439 9802760815 kisanpur@jeevanbikasmf.com

116 Branch Office Dhalkebar Dhanusa Ram Chandra Mandal 534 9802760816 dhalkebar@jeevanbikasmf.com

117 Branch Office Tarapatti Dhanusa Rupesh Kumar Mandal 552 9802760817 tarapatti@jeevanbikasmf.com

118 Branch Office Janakpur Dhanusa Dinesh Rajbanshi 348 9802760818 janakpur@jeevanbikasmf.com

119 Branch Office Matigada Saptari Sanjay Kumar Marbaita 769 9802760819 matigada@jeevanbikasmf.com

120 Branch Office Patthargada Saptari Devnarayan Mandal 218 9802760820 patthargada@jeevanbikasmf.com
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121 Branch Office Aurahi Siraha Rajiv Kumar Majhi 82 9802761121 aurahi@jeevanbikasmf.com

122 Branch Office Sonbarsa Siraha Santosh Kumar Mandal 367 9802761122 sonbarsa@jeevanbikasmf.com

123 Branch Office Haripurwa Sarlahi Sanjay Kumar Mandal 373 9802761123 haripurwa@jeevanbikasmf.com

124 Branch Office Nadhitaal Sarlahi Anand Kumar Chaudhary 177 9802761124 nadhitaal@jeevanbikasmf.com

125 Branch Office Parwanipur Sarlahi Utam Shrestha 36 9802761125 parwanipur@jeevanbikasmf.com

126 Branch Office Gaushala Mahottari Krishna Kumar Poddar 402 9802761126 gaushala@jeevanbikasmf.com

127 Branch Office Hanumanchowk Mahottari Kanhaiya Lal Rajbanshi 336 9802760827 hanumanchowk@jeevanbikasmf.com

128 Branch Office Timkiya Mahottari Sanjit Kumar Ray 422 9802760828 timkiya@jeevanbikasmf.com

129 Branch Office Ganguli Dhanusa Dina Bahardar Godhi 24 9802760829 ganguli@jeevanbikasmf.com

130 Branch Office Khudunabari Jhapa Sanjay Kumar Das 459 9802761230 Khudunabari@jeevanbikasmf.com

131 Branch Office Chhireshwarnath Dhanusa Kishun dev Mehta 674 9802761231 Chhireshwarnath@jeevanbikasmf.com

132 Branch Office Hariwan Sarlahi Tirtha Bahadur Thapa 524 9802761132 Hariwan@jeevanbikasmf.com

133 Branch Office Jayanagar Rautahat Balkrishna Sah 27 9802761133 Jayanagar@jeevanbikasmf.com

134 Branch Office Maulapur Rautahat Madan Kumar Kamati 781 9802761134 Maulapur@jeevanbikasmf.com

135 Branch Office Amarpatti Bara Prashuram Mandal 905 9802761235 Amarpatti@jeevanbikasmf.com

136 Branch Office Mudali Parsa Md Smail Miya 247 9802761136 Mudali@jeevanbikasmf.com

137 Branch Office Kalaiya Bara Sachindra Kumar Shah 225 9802761137 kalaiya@jeevanbikasmf.com

138 Branch Office Tedha Parsa Pramod Kumar Das 829 9802761138 Tedha@jeevanbikasmf.com

139 Branch Office Bhediya Saptari Ramesh Kumar Rajbanshi 194 9802761139 bheriya@jeevanbikasmf.com

140 Branch Office Nargho Saptari Bijaya Kumar Das 108 9802751140 nargho@jeevanbikasmf.com

141 Branch Office Kharchuhiya Saptari Amar Yadav 526 9802751141 kharchuhiya@jeevanbikasmf.com

142 Branch Office Gadhiya Siraha Aamod Kumar Mandal 897 9802751142 gadhiya@jeevanbikasmf.com

143 Branch Office Naraha Siraha Anant Ram Chaudhary 57 9802751143 naraha@jeevanbikasmf.com

144 Branch Office Temal Kavrepalanchok Randhir Kumar Chaudhary 558 9802751144 temal@jeevanbikasmf.com

145 Branch Office Bhimsensthan Ramechhap Suwel Alam 180 9802751145 bhimsensthan@jeevanbikasmf.com

146 Branch Office Bhardaha Saptari Kajal Kumari Shah 688 9802751146 bhardaha@jeevanbikasmf.com

147 Branch Office Manahari Makwanpur Pramod Kamat 678 9820737147 manahari@jeevanbikasmf.com

148 Branch Office Bagmati Makwanpur Devendra Prasad Dahal 993 9820737148 bagmati@jeevanbikasmf.com

149 Branch Office Bakaiya Makwanpur Santosh Kumar Yadav 857 9820737149 bakaiya@jeevanbikasmf.com

150 Branch Office Ichachhakamna Chitawan Manohar Hajam 100 9820737150 ichchhakamana@jeevanbikasmf.com

151 Branch Office Siddhalek Dhading Shivam Kumar Mandal 387 9820737151 siddhalek@jeevanbikasmf.com

152 Branch Office Roadsesh Morang Sharmila Kumari Rajbanshi 202 9820737016 roadsesh@jeevanbikasmf.com

153 Branch Office Shardanagar Chitawan Jay Krishna Chaudhary 469 9820737153 shardanagar@jeevanbikasmf.com

154 Branch Office Rapti Chitawan Giri Raj  Bhandari 700 9820737154 rapti@jeevanbikasmf.com

155 Branch Office Juneli Makwanpur Avinash Rouniyar 666 9820737155 juneli@jeevanbikasmf.com

156 Branch Office Banepa Kavrepalanchok Kedar Khatri 711 9820737156 banepa@jeevanbikasmf.com

157 Branch Office Namobuddha Kavrepalanchok Prithvi Narayan Sutihar 467 9820737021 namobuddha@jeevanbikasmf.com

158 Branch Office Ramechhap Ramechhap Binod Sah 519 9820737158 ramechhap@jeevanbikasmf.com

159 Branch Office Manthali Ramechhap Bijay Kumar Chaudhary 445 9820737159 manthli@jeevanbikasmf.com

160 Branch Office Pyauli Bhojpur Niraj Kumar Sah 370 9825383160 pyauli@jeevanbikasmf.com

S.No. Name Number of Office
1 Head Office 1
2 Liaison Office, Bhaktapur 1
3 Province Office 3
4 District Office 19
5 Branch Office 160

Total Number of Office 184

Total Number of Office
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